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Anglian Water Group Limited
Directors’ report
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements of Anglian Water Group Limited for the
year ended 31 March 2011.

Principal activities, business review and future developments

The principal activities of the company and its subsidiaries (together “the group”) during the year were water
supply and distribution, wastewater collection and treatment, providing social housing repairs, and property
development. The information that fulfils the requirement of the business review, including the company’s
financial risk management objectives, is set out on pages 5 to 22.

Group results and returns to shareholders

The profit and loss account on page 23 shows the group’s results for the year. Dividends of £217.2 million (2010:
£16.9 million) have been paid in the year. In addition a first interim dividend of £100.0 million in respect of the
year ended 31 March 2012 was approved by the board on 26 May 2011 and was paid on 8 June 2011. This
dividend has not been included as a liability at 31 March 2011.

Research and development
The group has a continuing policy of undertaking market-focused research and development on process plant,
biosolids treatment and other water and wastewater related matters.

Directors
The Directors who held office during the year and to the date of this report are set out below:

Sir Adrian Montague CBE Independent Non-Executive Chairman
Scott Longhurst Managing Director, Finance & Non Regulated Business
Peter Simpson Managing Director, Anglian Water Services

Non-Executive Directors:

Graeme Bevans CPP (resigned 28 July 2010)
André Bourbonnais CPP (appointed 28 July 2010)
Daniel Fetter CPP

Cressida Hogg 3i

Manoj Mehta IFM

Niall Mills CFS

Christine O'Reilly CFS

Christian Seymour IFM

Philip White 3i

Roger Witcomb CPP (resigned 1 January 2011)

CPP - Canada Pension Plan Investment Board
CFS - Colonial First State Global Asset Management
IFM - Industry Funds Management

Claire Russell continued to serve as Company Secretary throughout the year.

An annual review of the board'’s effectiveness is conducted by circulating a confidential questionnaire to each
board member. The feedback provided is reviewed by the Chairman and the findings are discussed by the
board, and with individual board members as appropriate. Members of the Anglian Water Services board are
also invited to participate in the group’s board effectiveness review. The Morrison board conducts a similar
review.

Directors' indemnities
The company maintains directors' and officers' liability insurance which gives appropriate cover for legal action
brought against its Directors.
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Shareholders
The investors in the company and their respective group shareholdings as at 31 March 2011 are as follows:

Number of share held

Class A Class B
no par value no par value No par value
ordinary ordinary preference
shares shares shares
Canada Pension Plan Investment Board 4,453,126 656,246 36,138,583,249
Colonial First State Global Asset Management 5,000,000 - 35,364,996,063
Industry Funds Management 3,065,623 - 21,683,149,948
3i 2,325,005 - 16,444,758,534
14,843,754 656,246 109,631,487,794

Policy on the payment of creditors

It is the group’s policy to provide suppliers of goods and services with standard terms and conditions of contract.
This document is available from each of the company’s principal subsidiaries and, in the case of Anglian Water, is
available from the company’s Supply Chain Management department. In general, regional purchasing
agreements are in place with preferred suppliers and the terms will apply to all transactions. The group abides
by the terms of payment. At 31 March 2011, the group had 33 days purchases outstanding (2010: 41 days). At
31 March 2011, the company had no trade creditors (2010: none).

Charitable donations (community investment)

During the year the group made available £0.75 million (2010: £0.75 million) to the Anglian Water Assistance
Fund, which paid a total of around £0.6 million (2010: £0.4 million) directly to customers who qualified for
assistance.

The Anglian Water Group employee volunteering Scheme, give me five, has been supporting local community
activities for more than 10 years. The scheme is currently being reviewed following the launch of Anglian
Water's Love Every Drop programme in October 2010. A new scheme will be launched in 2011 building on the
positive impacts already achieved by employees in their local communities and encompassing the aims of the
Love Every Drop programme.

During the year, the group donated £40,000 (2010: £40,000) to WaterAid, its recognised charity. Individual
requests for sponsorship were declined on the basis that the group’s policy is to encourage community
involvement rather than charitable donations. In addition, the group supports employees getting involved in
fundraising activities under the give me five programme, and this volunteers’ committee has raised a further
£183,000 (2010: £275,000) for WaterAid.

Political donations
No political donations were made during the year (2010: £nil).
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Employees

Employees are kept informed of changes in the business and general financial and economic factors influencing
the group. This is achieved through a systematic approach to employee communication, which includes regular
briefings, presentations and electronic mailings. The group’s intranet is also widely used as a source of
information.

The group values the views of its employees and consults with them and their representatives on a regular basis
about matters that may affect them. The group has a series of policies that both inform and guide all employees
on the group’s approach to a range of ethical issues. Procedures are in place to deal with allegations of
misconduct, harassment, bullying and other inappropriate behaviour.

The group also has a series of family friendly policies, including such initiatives as flexible working hours, home
working, sabbaticals and career breaks.

To encourage employee participation in Anglian Water Group’s performance, the group operates the AWG
loyalty savings scheme which has been offered every year since 2007 and enables employees to potentially
benefit from the group’s future performance.

The group values diversity within its workforce and has put in place procedures to ensure that it is an equal
opportunities employer. All job applications are fully and fairly considered, having regard only to the
applicant’s aptitudes and abilities relevant to the role. In the event of disability, every effort is made to ensure
that employment continues and appropriate adjustments are made and training given. Career development and
promotion of disabled people is, as far as possible, identical to that of other employees.

Statement of disclosure of information to auditors

In the case of each of the persons who are Directors at the time when the report is approved: So far as each
Director is aware there is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditors are unaware; and they
have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as individual Directors in order to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company's auditors are aware of that information.

Appointment of auditors and Annual General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 87(4) of the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991, Anglian Water Group Limited has dispensed with
the obligation to hold an Annual General Meeting and the company has dispensed with the requirement to lay
the annual report and accounts before the company in general meeting. The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP, have indicated their willingness to stay in office and a resolution that they be reappointed will be proposed
to the Board.

Going concern

The Directors have undertaken a detailed review to assess the liquidity requirements of the group compared
against the cash and facilities available to the group, and have a reasonable expectation that the group and
company have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this
reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

The Companies (Jersey) Law 1991 (the “Jersey Companies Law”) requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors have elected to prepare the financial
statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards and applicable law ("UK GAAP")). The financial statements are required by law to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and group and of the profit or loss of the group for
that period.

In preparing those financial statements, the Directors are required under UK GAAP to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business, in which case there should be supporting assumptions or qualifications as
necessary.

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial
statements.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the company and the group and to enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Jersey Companies Law. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
company and the group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the company’s website. It should be noted that information published on the internet is accessible
countries with different legal requirements. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and
ination of accounts may di om legislation in other jurisdictions.

Claire Russell
Company Secretary

20 June 2011

Registered Office: Ogier House,
The Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey JE4 9WG
Registered in Jersey No. 94523
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Group financial performance

The group’s principal business is Anglian Water, the group’s regulated water and wastewater company, which
serves in excess of six million customers in the east of England and Hartlepool. The group also includes Morrison
Facilities Services, a support services business, and AWG Property, a specialist property development company.

The key performance indicators of the group’s individual businesses are discussed in the Anglian Water,
Morrison Facilities Services and Property sections below. In addition, compliance with the group’s borrowing
covenants is an additional key performance indicator for the group and is discussed on page 22.

The results for the group for the year to 31 March 2011 show a pre-tax loss of £12.4 million (2010: profit of £42.3
million) and turnover of £1,412.0 million (2010: £1,395.6 million). The group has net debt at 31 March 2011 of
£5,817.4 million (2010: £5,588.1 million). Net cash inflow from operating activities for the year was £616.4
million (2010: £646.7 million).

Dividends
Dividends of £217.2 million (2010: £16.9 million) have been declared and paid in the year.

Divisional results
The following pages set out a business review for each of the main reporting segments of the group in respect
of the year ended 31 March 2011.
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Anglian Water

Key performance indicators
Anglian Water’s key performance indicators for the year to 31 March 2011 are provided below.

anglian

Measure

How we define it

How this KPI relates
to our strategy

Our performance

Our 2010/11 performance in
context

Operational

Drinking water
quality (1)

Our overall ‘mean
zonal compliance’
performance in the
calendar year
against the required
standards.

Frontier performer.

2010: 99.96%
2009: 99.96%
2008: 99.98%
2007: 99.96%
2006: 99.95%
2005: 99.96%

Our drinking water quality
continues to be excellent.

Leakage (2)

Cubic metres of
water lost per
kilometre of main
per day.

Managing water
resources efficiently is a
key business goal. Our
leakage rates are
consistently almost half
the industry average.

2010/11: 6.10 m3/km/day
2009/10: 5.62 m3/km/day
2008/09: 5.60 m3/km/day
2007/08: 5.60 m3/km/day
2006/07: 5.50 m3/km/day
2005/06: 5.80 m3/km/day

Throughout the extreme cold
winter we devoted enormous
resources to return leakage to
normal levels.

Industry average 2009/10: 10.90
m3/km/day

Service Ofwat’s new We welcome the SIM 2010/11: 4.15 Our satisfaction score improved in
Incentive measure, focussing and are committed to each quarter of 2010/11. We were
Mechanism on customer service. | continually improving ranked second in the fourth
(SIM) Scored out of 5. our customer service. quarter.
Environmental
Carbon CO, emissions A key measure in our 2010/11: 504,026 Our target is a 50% reduction in
footprint equivalent in tonnes | approach to managing | 2009/10: 493,702 emissions by 2035 from a 2010
CO.e. our environmental 2008/09: 498,115 baseline.
impact and helps 2007/08: 478,450 The increase this year is directly
delivering cost savings. | 2006/07: 466,280 attributable to our focus on
maintaining customers’ supply of
safe drinking water during the
severe winter.
Financial
Capital Total spend from 1 Total investment One year to March 2011: Lower than assumed due to:
expenditure April 2010 to 31 delivered so far in this Determination: 347 (3) e Higher efficiencies.
£ million March 2015, five-year asset Actual: 292 e Reduced demand for new
increased by management period. connections.
construction-related e New project appraisal
inflation. processes.
Operating Operating costs The cost of running Determination: 405.2 (6) | Up 2.7% on previous year
expenditure (excluding Anglian Water Actual: principally due to inflationary
£ million (4) depreciation and operations and 2010/11: 396.5 pressures on cost.
exceptional achieving our 2009/10: 386.1 2% outperformance relative to
operating costs) objectives. 2008/09: 363.5 Final Determination (FD).
incurred during the 2007/08: 331.2 . .
year. 2006/07: 3247 Operating expendlture: I_ower than
2005/06: 314.4 FD fiu'e to focussed efficiency
initiatives and lower power costs,
partially offset by a higher bad
debt charge than anticipated in
the FD.
Employees
Accident Number of accidents | Indicates how safely we | 2010/11: 0.31 Nothing is more important to us

frequency rate

per 100,000 hours
worked. Data
includes both direct
employees and
contractors.

work.

2009/10: 0.37
2008/09: 0.39
2007/08: 0.37
2006/07: 0.39
2005/06: 0.39

than safety. Our certified health
and safety systems are now
effective throughout the company.
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Measure How we define it How this KPI relates Our performance Our 2010/11 performance in
to our strategy context
CHaSPI (5) The Health and Aims to help assess 2010/11: 7.7 We are the only water company to
Safety Executive how well an 2009/10: 7.7 publicly report health and safety
(HSE) corporate organisation manages 2008/09: 7.7 performance this way.
performance index. | health and safety risks 2007/08: 7.4
Scored out of 10. and responsibilities 2006/07: 7.3
towards its workers, 2005/06: 7.1
the public and other
stakeholders.

(1) Drinking water results published in 2011 for the 2010 calendar year measured as ‘mean zonal compliance’ with the
regulatory quality standards.

(2) Lost water from leaks in our network and our customers’ own pipes. 2010/11 result subject to formal confirmation from
Ofwat in autumn 2011.

(3) Final Determination Capex on a gross, Pre-Capital Incentive Scheme adjustment basis, in 2010/11 prices.

(4) For the appointed and non-appointed businesses.

(5) For more information, see www.hse.gov.uk or www.chaspi.info-exchange.com.

(6) Adjusted to 2010/11 prices and for non-appointed business and pension deficit payments to ensure consistency.

Introduction

Anglian Water is at the heart of every single community in the region, new or well-established, providing clean,
safe drinking water and effective, efficient wastewater services. Anglian Water is in it for the long-term and
plans for the long-term.

Market operations

Drinking water

We borrow water from the environment, store it and treat it to world-class standards to supply 1.2 billion litres
every day to our 4.4 million drinking water customers in towns and villages from Grimsby in the north-east of
our region to Milton Keynes at its south-western tip.

Wastewater

The company receives approximately 950 million litres of wastewater per day from 2.5 million homes, including
customers who receive their water from other companies. The wastewater is treated to a high standard and
returned to the environment via rivers or coastal outlets. The organic waste is treated, dried and used in
agriculture as a natural fertiliser.

Management

Structure

The Anglian Water Services Board of Directors consists of the Chairman, Sir Adrian Montague; four Executive
Directors, Peter Simpson, Scott Longhurst, Jean Spencer and Chris Newsome, and three independent Non-
Executive Directors, Christopher Garnett, Robert Napier and John Watkinson.

Peter Simpson, Scott Longhurst, Jean Spencer and Chris Newsome also sit on Anglian Water’'s Management
Board which works closely with the Anglian Water Services board to develop, review and implement our long-
term strategic direction.

People

Around 3,700 people work directly for Anglian Water. Another 7,000 work for our contractors and partner
organisations. That makes us one of the largest employers in the region and an important part of the lives of
the families in our communities.

We want to be a leading employer in the UK, making Anglian Water a company people are proud to work for.
Helping them to stay fit and healthy, providing professional and technical skills development and supporting
them when life gets difficult are all fundamental to this ambition.
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However, to meet our customer expectations we do need to look at ways of reducing costs, improving our
efficiency and increasing our flexibility. This has meant expanding our offshore capacity and redeploying some
UK-based staff to front-line customer facing roles. We have also worked with our trade unions on changing
working hours to provide increased flexibility in scheduling work and those changes came into effect this year.

Regulators and the regulatory environment
The water industry is one of the most highly regulated sectors in the UK. Several Government agencies monitor
and regulate our performance on customer service, quality, prices and investment.

While economic regulation is UK-specific, EU directives and legislation also cover our operations — particularly
drinking water, urban wastewater treatment, water framework, groundwater protection, sewage sludge and
health and safety at work.

Ofwat regulates the 21 regional water companies in England and Wales.

Ofwat’s priorities are to:

e Make sure that all the companies provide customers with a good quality, efficient service at a fair price.
e Monitor the companies’ performance and take action to protect consumers’ interests.

¢ Set all the companies challenging efficiency targets.

The water industry operates on five-yearly cycles known as Asset Management Plan (AMP) periods. Ofwat sets
prices at the beginning of each period, following submissions from each company about what it will cost to
deliver their plans. In November 2009, Ofwat issued their Final Determinations to water and wastewater
companies, setting out prices for the period 2010/2015. These came into effect on 1 April 2010.

In addition to agreeing its Asset Management Plan on a five-yearly cycle, every water company sends Ofwat an
annual update on its performance in the annual June Return. Ofwat then uses this return to monitor and
compare companies’ performances.

A key part of our strategy is to work with Ofwat and other key regulatory and statutory partners to consider
better, more sustainable ways of delivering services.

This year we have participated in a number of consultations and investigations including: the Water Supply
Licensing volume threshold; Customer Transfer Protocol; New Appointments and Bulk Pricing; guidance changes
to the Water Supply Licencing Operational Code and Common Contract.

Ofwat review

The review of the water industry regulator will feed into the composition of the Water White paper, to be
published by December 2011. This review offers us the opportunity to contribute to the updating of water
industry regulation. We have played an active part in the ongoing debate within the industry on what path
reform should take, both reactively through responding to consultations, and pro-actively by investigating
potential alternatives to meet the future challenges of growth and climate change.

The Drinking Water Inspectorate is responsible for ensuring compliance with the drinking water quality
regulations.

The Environment Agency controls the amount of water we are allowed to take from the environment and the
quality of the water we return to it.

It's important to us that we provide excellent customer service across the board and we work closely on
improving our levels of service with the Consumer Council for Water.

The current competition framework
There are currently two limited forms of competition in the water industry: /nset appointments and water supply
licensing.
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Inset appointments are where the incumbent water company is replaced by another company which becomes
responsible for customer service and maintenance of the supply and/or wastewater network. To qualify for an
inset appointment the site must be single premises using more than 50 mega litres of water a year, or be a
‘greenfield’ site that does not have an existing connection to the water supply network. Alternatively,

insets may be by agreement. Anglian Water has a long history of involvement in inset appointments, and we
supply customers outside our statutory area on five sites. Within our area there are six sites served by another
company.

Water supply licensing allows customers who use over 50 mega litres of water a year to choose their water
supplier, who would in turn purchase the water in bulk from us. To date, only one customer in the UK has
switched to another supplier. Wastewater services are not included in this arrangement.

Competition in the water industry

The competition framework is currently under review. We support the introduction of competition where there
are clear benefits to customers, and are playing an active role in the consultation process. We were involved in
both the Cave Review (2008) of competition and innovation and the Walker Review (2009) on charging for
household water and wastewater services.

We were members of the Market Reform and Finance Forum, a group chaired by Defra and comprising

representatives from Government, regulators, the Shareholder Executive and the water and wastewater
companies. We continue to be active in the following groups: the /ndepen project on Water Policy and
Regulation; UKWIR Customer Engagement Project and the Water UK Competition Focus Group.

This year we published two major evidenced-based reports around new thinking on the management of water
resources in the future.

A right to water? - meeting the challenge of sustainable water allocation
In partnership with Frontier Economics, we've explored the processes and arrangements for protecting and
sharing the water that sustains our environment and economy between different users.

While the current arrangements have worked well so far, the challenges and uncertainties of climate change
and growth mean we will need to find innovative solutions to respond to pressures on water resources in the
future.

Trading theory for practice

Water trading is a potential answer to one of the biggest challenges facing the future viability of our industry —
water resource management. This report presents the conclusions of detailed technical analysis undertaken in
close collaboration between Anglian Water, Essex and Suffolk Water and Cambridge Water Company.
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Financial performance

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2011 2010

£m £m

Turnover 1,092.3 1,099.8
Operating profit before goodwill amortisation and exceptional costs 447.3 472.0

Turnover for the year was £1,092.3 million, a decrease of £7.5 million from the previous year. This reduction
principally relates to the regulatory price reduction of 0.4% (including inflation), and a slight reduction in
demand from businesses, partially offset by a small increase in demand from household customers.

Operating costs (before exceptional charges) for the year increased by £10.4 million (2.7%) to £396.5 million
(2010: £386.1 million). This reflects inflationary pressures across our cost base, particularly rates and pension
charges, as well as higher costs for operating newly completed infrastructure assets. These cost increases were to
a large extent anticipated and recognised within our AMP5' regulatory settlement. Partially offsetting these
cost pressures were some £15 million of savings arising from the restructuring announced in the prior year,
together with ongoing savings from other efficiency initiatives including reduced power consumption and
supply chain savings, and around £11 million of reduced power costs resulting from fixing wholesale energy
prices for AMP5.

Due to the continuing difficult economic environment the bad debt charge for the year was £33.7 million (2010:
£35.4 million). There was a modest improvement in the collection rates of younger debt, due to new more
focused debt collection initiatives, which helped contribute to a reduction of £1.7 million in the bad debt charge
compared with the previous year, although older debt remains a significant problem.

Overall, operating expenditure (before exceptional charges) as a percentage of turnover increased from 35.1%
last year to 36.3%.

As a result of the continuing capital programme, depreciation was up 2.8% from £241.7 million last year to
£248.5 million.

In the year to 31 March 2011 Anglian Water raised £130.0 million of new funds and made repayments of £2.5
million on finance leases. In addition to this, Anglian Water paid down accreted indexation of £80.5 million on
index-linked swaps as part of a restructuring exercise. Accreted indexation is included in debt and so the impact
of the pay down was to reduce debt by £80.5 million. After the year end a further £100 million of new debt was
secured through a US Private Placement, and EIB credit approval was received for a new £300 million facility over
AMPS5.

At 31 March 2011 Anglian Water had net borrowings of £4,586.1 million, an increase of £230.9 million over the
prior year. Net borrowings are a mixture of fixed, index-linked and variable rate debt of £5,188.4 million and
cash and deposits of £602.3 million. The increased net borrowings comprise a net decrease of £74.7 million in
cash and deposits (which causes net debt to increase) and an increase of £156.2 million in loans and associated
costs. The business generated a net cash inflow from operating activities of £632.1 million in the year ended 31
March 2011 (2010: £658.8 million).

On 5 October 2010 Anglian Water Services Limited undertook a capital reduction and converted £850 million of
share capital into distributable reserves. This is primarily in preparation for the expected conversion to
International Financial Reporting Standards in the year ending 31 March 2015.

Gross capital expenditure for the year was £291.7 million, which represents a good start to our AMP5 investment
programme and is in line with our overall Regulatory output expectations.

L AMP5 — Asset Management Plan period from April 2010 to March 2015

10
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During the first year of AMP5 we completed 19 water quality outputs against a regulatory expectation of
twelve, 64 kilometres of water mains renewal, 64 kilometres of sewer rehabilitation, and are on track on our
first time sewerage schemes and our sewer flooding prevention and mitigation schemes.

We have had a very successful year in terms of designing and delivering efficiency on the investment
programme, outperforming our expectations in this first year of AMP5.

Operational performance

A strong start to AMP5

In this first year of AMP5 we set out our clear intention to develop our leading position in the industry. We
launched Love Every Drop in October 2010, our campaigning platform to put water at the heart of a whole new
way of living. It is transforming the way we do business and is at the heart of our strategic approach to
achieving our business goals.

Improving our efficiency and flexibility

To meet our customers’ expectations we continually review ways of reducing cost, improving our efficiency and
increasing our flexibility. In a year of considerable change we continue to drive down costs across the board.
Our Shaping the Future initiative modernises working practices and was implemented throughout 2010,
representing a fundamental shift in levels of customer service.

Other efficiency measures in the year include the off-shoring of selected back-office customer services work to
Trivandrum in India. We redeployed some UK-based staff to gain efficiencies and improvements in capacity, cost
and response time. We remain firmly committed to locating all our call centres onshore and in our region to
deliver the best possible service to our customers.

We are also working to deliver considerable savings on energy use and carbon emissions, making the connection
between cutting costs and cutting carbon effectively in all areas of the business. This year we have met our
energy targets, delivering savings of 11.9 GWh (full year effect), equivalent to 6,426 tonnes of carbon.

Awards and recognition

Over the past twelve months our performance has earned us a number of national awards and accreditations.
Most recently we have achieved the highest ranking of Platinum Plus in the Business in the Community’s 2011
Corporate Responsibility Index, the UK’s leading voluntary benchmark of corporate responsibility.

Our record on health and safety has won recognition from The Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents
(RoSPA) with two gold awards. The first award confirms our 2010/11 performance. The second gold recognises
our commitment and sustained performance on health and safety across our operations over the past five years.

Strong performance in exceptional weather conditions

Our commitment to the highest standards of service was nowhere more evident than over the winter. In the
most severe conditions for 100 years, our operational teams worked around the clock in extremely low
temperatures and early, heavy falls of snow to minimise interruptions and ensure supply. With the experience of
the two severe winters of 2008/09 and 2009/10 to guide us, we had planned ahead, investing an additional £4
million in pro-active network maintenance.

This approach enabled us to meet the operational demands of close to double the number of burst mains
against the previous year and, in contrast to some other areas of the UK, we continually maintained supplies to
our customers.

Looking ahead on water resources, we are experienced in the management of supply in a drier than average

part of the country, and are confident that water resources are secure to meet forecast demand over the
summer months.

11
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Customer service and operational performance measures

This year Ofwat introduced their new industry-wide measure, based on customer satisfaction, the Service
Incentive Mechanism (SIM). We fully support the principles behind this new approach to evaluating
performance in our sector and have found it a useful driver to enhancing our customers’ experience.

Against the backdrop of the exceptionally bad winter, we were the only water and sewerage company (WASC)
to improve our results every quarter, achieving a fourth quarter ranking of second for Water and Sewerage
Companies (WASCs). We ended the year with a SIM score of 4.15 out of 5. We continue to identify and
implement service improvements with the aim of achieving a leading ranking.

Excellent performance on wastewater compliance

The severe cold followed by the extended dry spell throughout the spring put significant pressure on our
wastewater operations. Despite this, performance at our wastewater treatment works remained high. We also
had our best ever year for bathing water guideline compliance, with no fewer than 20 beaches across our region
flying the coveted Blue Flag in 2011 (2010:15).

Drinking water quality remains excellent

The quality of the drinking water we supply is reported in calendar years and is measured by the one third of a
million tests we undertake each year. Our record on drinking water quality standards remained excellent in
2010, with an overall compliance score of 99.96% (2009: 99.96%).

2010 marked the beginning of our latest £123 million programme of investment in drinking water quality. We
have already completed, ahead of schedule, a scheme to address rising pesticide levels in the raw water at our

Riddlesworth treatment works in Norfolk. We have also installed new treatment processes at Wighton works,

the first of 22 such schemes across our region.

Managing growth and climate change

Customer expectations on levels of service and the intense media focus on interruptions to service and security
of supply underscore our emphasis on resilience across our operations. Recent schemes at Morcott and East Hills
safeguard supplies for areas of high population in the East Midlands and East Anglia.

Anticipating the impact of climate change is one of our key priorities. In January we submitted our C/imate
Change Adaptation Reportto Defra, required this year for the first time under a new reporting power. This
provided significant detail on the processes and principles we employ in assessing and managing the risks posed
by climate change.

We continue to be heavily involved in shaping the climate change mitigation and adaptation response at local,
regional and national levels.

Occupational health and safety
It's our strong belief that all work related accidents and ill health are preventable. Whatever the job, however
urgent the deadline, health and safety always come first for our employees, contractors and the public.

For the fifth year running, we’ve achieved a Gold RoSPA achievement award. RoSPA have recognised this
commitment with the additional award of their Gold Medal for sustained health and safety performance.

Our long-term aspiration is no accidents and no harm. This year we achieved our lowest ever accident frequency
rate: 0.31 (2009/10: 0.37) and have more than halved the number of serious (Category 1) incidents from 66 last
year to 32.

Our “make it safe make it home” campaign, focuses everyone who works with us on our Health and Safety
Charter.

¢ Nothing is so important that we cannot take the time to do it safely.

e We are committed to the principle that all accidents and ill health is preventable.

¢ We will never knowingly walk past an unsafe act or condition.
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Principal risks and uncertainties
Effective risk management is central to the achievement of our strategic priorities. It's a key enabling theme,
running across our business through a number of formal and informal processes.

There are a number of commercial risks and uncertainties that could have a significant impact on our operations,
financial health or reputation. We invest substantial resources to identify, analyse and manage these challenges.

We track risks using a comprehensive system of risk registers, which operate at a number of levels across the
business. These registers are used to assess the risks; to document the existing controls in place to manage these
risks; to ensure mitigation plans are established and monitored; and to establish clear ownership of each of the
risks.

The Top Tier risk register is reviewed on a regular basis by the Anglian Water Services Management Board, The
Group Risk and Compliance Committee, and the Anglian Water Services Board.

Financing our business
Description
We fund a £2.3 billion capital programme. It's critical that we have robust financing arrangements in place.

Mitigation

Anglian Water is funded predominantly by debt in the form of long-term bonds and other debt instruments,
rather than equity (shares). Net debt accounts for approximately 79% of Anglian Water’s regulatory capital
value as at March 2011.

The debt-funding structure was established in 2002 and has resulted in Anglian Water's capital costs being
consistently lower than the industry average, resulting in lower bills for our customers. Our focus is on
maintaining stable credit ratings and a strong liquidity and cash position which we manage through cash and
investments together with available bank facilities and having a diverse debt portfolio in terms of source and
maturity.

Climate Change

Description

Climate change presents one of the biggest challenges to our business, with potential long-term impacts on the
water resources in our region, and on potential flooding at our treatment sites and within our sewer networks.
We operate in the driest region of the UK, classed as ‘water stressed’ by the Environment Agency, so we must
manage supply and demand carefully, both today, and for the long-term.

Mitigation

We work closely with national and regional agencies to develop adaptation plans for our industry, and to ensure
that we work to common standards on forecasting the impacts of climate change in our region - we then reflect
these forecasts in our investment plans for the next 25 years. We have set ambitious goals to reduce our carbon
emissions, both in terms of the carbon footprint of our new assets, and in the energy consumption of our
operations.

Flooding of Key Sites

Description

One of the key potential effects of climate change is the impact on the weather in our region. We expect more
frequent, extreme storms and wetter winters. These are likely to cause localised flooding that may impact our
wastewater network, flood customers’ homes and potentially disable treatment works.

Mitigation

We invested £40 million on AMP4 schemes to improve resilience of our network, and plan to invest a further £40
million in AMP5 for flooding and resilience schemes. Comprehensive Business Continuity plans are in place,
accredited to BS25999, including detailed Flood and Emergency Response plans for our key sites. These plans are
regularly tested, including in regional multi-agency exercises, to ensure the plans are robust and effective.
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Regional Growth

Description

Coping with the forecast rise in population in our region is one of our most significant long-term challenges.
Our region contains a large part of three of the four growth areas defined by the Government as well as a
number of individual growth points. Although current economic conditions have slowed the rate of house
building in the short-term, we expect that planned developments will restart once economic conditions in the
UK improve.

Mitigation

We invest considerable effort in forecasting our supply and demand requirements at a local and regional level
for the next 25 years. We continually assess our investment options over the next 25 years, to identify the right
combination of investment in new water resources, enhancements to our networks, and water efficiency
measures to meet this challenge most cost effectively for our customers. We are also championing the use of
sustainable drainage techniques, in place of piped systems as a more environmentally sound way of managing
surface water in our growing region.

Energy Management

Description

We are one of the largest users of electricity in our region, due to the power needed to treat water and
wastewater, and pump it around such a geographically flat region. Energy represents 12% of our total
operating costs. Wholesale energy prices have fallen from the very high levels seen in the summer of 2008, but
continue to be very volatile, reflecting global economic and political conditions.

Mitigation

We use a comprehensive hedging programme to manage our exposure to wholesale energy prices, and over the
last two years we have progressively locked in over 90% of our energy costs for the next four years. We have a
significant and continuous programme to reduce our energy consumption on our sites, with a focus on the
energy efficiency of new investments, and in more energy efficient ways to operate our current plants. We now
generate close to 5% of our own electricity needs through renewable power plants based on our own sites, with
plans in place to increase this by the end of AMP5.

Bad Debt

Description

We continue to experience significant numbers of customers who are unable to pay their bills, or who choose
not to pay them. This puts a considerable cost burden on those who do pay their water charges, of around £15
per year. We currently provide around 3% of our revenue against non payment of bills.

Mitigation

We are ensuring that we make our payment arrangements as flexible as possible for those customers who want
to pay but are struggling to do so — for example by the provision of a telephone debt helpline; a “Back on
Track” scheme for those in arrears who are now in a position to make regular payments; and the Anglian Water
Assistance Fund that provides further assistance to those experiencing genuine hardship.

We also have a strong focus on the collection of customer debts, and are using all available recovery procedures
to minimise the levels of bad debts, including legal redress. We have implemented a sophisticated debt
management system, and are working with leading debt collection specialists to exploit new advances in this
area, including the appropriate sharing and use of credit reference data.

Water Sector Reform

Description

The future shape of the water sector has been the focus of considerable debate over the last two years in
particular, with a number of reviews by leading experts and government bodies into the key areas of Customer
Tariffs, Economic Regulation and Competition. The outcome of these reviews is still uncertain, but is likely to
result in significant changes to the industry.
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Mitigation

We have been fully engaged in all aspects of these debates, including the publication of a number of pieces of
evidence based research in the key areas of water resource, and in particular on water trading in our region.
We have taken an active role in key industry working groups, including the Market Reform Finance Forum,
which looked at the impacts of potential reforms on the financing of the industry, and we are a pilot company
in Ofwat’s accounting separation project.

Private Sewers

Description

We fully expect that Private Sewers in our region will transfer to our ownership from 1 October 2011, with
privately owned pumping stations to transfer to us over the coming years. We estimate that this will increase
the length of our sewer network by 80% and that we will adopt upwards of 3,000 pumping stations. We expect
that the condition of these assets will be very variable and will require significant investment over time to ensure
they meet our standards.

Mitigation

We have established a dedicated project team to manage this transition, and this team has been in place for
most of the last year. We have conducted extensive surveys to assess the condition of the assets that we will
adopt and have carefully planned our resource needs to effectively manage the increased amount of repair and
maintenance required for these assets. We are also preparing a range of strategic communications for our
sewerage customers, explaining the adoption process and detailing mutual responsibilities and obligations.

Efficiency delivery

Description

The delivery of efficiencies in our operations is vital to our success as a company — keeping our costs down helps
to minimise our customers’ bills, and is the foundation for how we are incentivised in the current regulatory
structure. We have delivered significant cost efficiencies across our capital and operating cost base in AMP4, and
need to continue to drive out costs throughout AMP5 and beyond.

Mitigation

We have two major efficiency programs in place, focused on driving out costs from our capital program and our
operating cost base. Examples of efficiency projects we have implemented at the start of AMP5 include the
changing of working practices in our front line workforce, a major efficiency programme across our back office
teams, a review of our delivery of repairs to our networks, a continued focus on energy efficiency, and the
control of bad debts.

Compliance with general legislation

Description

We carefully manage compliance with current legislation, but are aware that the introduction of major new
laws can increase the risk of inadvertent non-compliance. One such new law is the Bribery Act 2010 which
comes into force on 1 July 2011. The Bribery Act has significant implications for organisations carrying on
business in the UK, who can be liable for failing to prevent bribery being committed on their behalf by their
business associates. There are particular risks for companies with extensive supply chains as this could cover
bribery by their suppliers or contractors where these third parties are performing services on behalf of the
company.

Mitigation

Our legal department works closely with the business to ensure compliance with legislation generally, and the
Legal Director sits on the Risk and Compliance Management Group which meets on a quarterly basis. With
respect to the new Bribery Act we have taken a zero tolerance approach. The Board has approved an
implementation plan for the business which is designed to ensure compliance with the Act and is framed around
the six principles set out in the guidance issued by the Ministry of Justice.
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Outlook
We believe we have had a strong financial and operational performance for the year which provides a solid
platform for the remainder of AMP5.

In the year ahead, Ofwat’s ongoing review offers us the opportunity to contribute to the updating of water
industry regulation to reflect current and future challenges. We are participating in these consultations with a
package of recommendations we believe will better meet the needs of customers and ensure financial
sustainability across the water and wastewater sector.

We are also planning for the challenge of adopting around 20,000km of private sewers and in excess of 3,000
private pumping stations under Defra’s transfer of private drains and sewers initiative expected to start on 1
October 2011.

Our focus remains on continuing to deliver targeted and sustainable efficiencies across our operations and asset
management programme, while continuing to deliver first-class operational performance and great customer
service.
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Morrison Facilities Services (Morrison)

Principal activities
Morrison is a leading social housing repairs provider in the United Kingdom. We principally provide outsourced
property repair and maintenance and capital investment services to housing associations and local authorities.

Morrison currently has over 50 major clients. We manage more than 500,000 homes and other local authority
buildings and provide facilities services to over 500 schools. We offer repair and maintenance services and
related activities such as call centre management and tenant liaison. Morrison also manages local authorities’
and housing associations’ capital spending programmes in areas such as kitchen and bathroom replacement.

The Morrison Vision and Values

Morrison’s Vision is to “transform the quality of homes and communities for our customers”. This embodies the
need to improve service and value for customers and clients, improve and enrich both homes and the
communities they form, and to be known as a service partner that genuinely strives to make a difference rather
than just a contractor. Morrison’s Values are aligned to Customers, to People, and to Performance.

The Social Housing market in which we operate

The 2010 UK social housing market (comprising responsive maintenance, planned maintenance and Decent
Homes) was worth an estimated £12.0 billion in 2010. We estimate annual market decline of nine per cent in
the following year and then three per cent the year after, due to a decline in the Decent Homes programme but
this is dependent on government spending and no replacement for the Decent Homes programme.

Morrison is a large, respected player in this hugely fragmented market, in which the top 6 players have a
combined market share of just 17%. We are ranked number three in this market by revenue — and number one
for our core responsive maintenance work.

Councils and housing associations have outsourced about 85% of their capital and repairs work, though only
about 50% of our core responsive work has been outsourced to date. Outsourcing for repairs work is likely to
increase as councils and housing associations continue to seek private sector involvement to address their
growing spend and service challenges.

Our clients’ buying behaviour increasingly favours large companies like Morrison. Bundled multi-trade works
(for example painting, plumbing and gas servicing) are now commonplace as councils and housing associations
find combined contracts are more cost-effective and easier to run. Bigger multi-trade players like Morrison have
benefited, with the market share of the largest providers increasing in each of the last two years. Morrison’s
scale also means we can invest in training and IT systems that support client and tenant demands for rapid, top
quality service backed by better management information.

We feel we have abundant opportunities to grow, since we believe that more work will be outsourced to the
private sector and we are well placed to grow our share in a fragmented market.
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Measuring our delivery

Key Performance Indicators

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2011 2010
Accident frequency rate ' 0.16 0.25
Operating profit margin 5.2% 4.6%
Cash conversion ratio 99% 91%
Trade debtor days’ 41 39
Order book at 31 March * £1,428m £923m
' Number of accidents per 100,000 hours worked, calculated on an annual basis
* Cash from operating activities as a share of earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
* Includes amounts recoverable on contracts
* Excluding contract extensions
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2011 2010
£m £m
Turnover 2741 267.3
Operating profit before exceptional items and goodwill amortisation 14.2 12.4
Exceptional items 29 -
Goodwill amortisation (3.4) (3.4)
Operating profit 13.7 9.0

In the year to 31 March 2011 the Group achieved revenues of £274.1 million including joint ventures (2010:
£267.3 million). An increase in turnover of 2.5% comes despite the loss in 2009/10 of the large Norwich contract
(2010: £29.5 million), and the continued slow down in Decent Homes work as the UK Government's initiative
nears completion.

A continued focus on efficient working, along with the full year benefit of the 2009/10 front line cost reduction
exercise, has led to an increase in operating margin to 5.2% (2010: 4.6%). This allowed the Group to generate
an operating profit before exceptional items and goodwill amortisation of £14.2 million, representing an
increase of 15% from the previous year.

The Group has achieved a higher operating margin as a result of a number of key successes.

e Efficiency improvements on existing contracts — the full year benefit of 2009/10’s frontline restructuring
project, along with more efficient utilisation of the remaining workforce.

¢ Successful management of new contracts — profit generation despite the operational and financial challenges
of starting new contracts.

¢ Indexation - indexation clauses across many of our contracts allowed for price increases.

e Commercial settlement — the successful management of a number of ongoing contractual and management
issues allowed the release of provisions.

Further projects designed to exploit synergies within the organisation and achieve economies of scale relating to
the purchase of materials and reduction in back office infrastructure will be completed in 2011/12, and are
expected to generate permanent efficiency savings in future accounting periods.

Financial position at the balance sheet date

Our focus on managing Morrison’s working capital cycle has continued. An increase in contract debtors to £43.5
million (2010: £31.0 million) reflects strong revenues in the approach to year-end, with the number of days’ sales
held in net trade debtors and amounts recoverable on contracts increasing slightly from 39 days to 41 days at 31
March 2011.

18



Anglian Water Group Limited
Business review (continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2011 MORRISON

Net cash of £24.4 million is stated after dividend payments (including minority dividends) of £8.2 million, and
represents an increase of £2.5 million on the 2009/10 figure. Current assets benefit from the payment of the
outstanding intercompany debt from Norwich relating to profits earned in prior years. Excluding this and other
payments made relating to this contract, the Group would have achieved a cash conversion ratio of 81%,
continuing the strong performance seen in the previous year (2010: 91%), but reflecting the investment required
in the mobilisation of new contracts.

Morrison’s operations require only a limited fixed asset base, although the Group continues to invest in its
future growth through the acquisition and development of new solutions and systems.

The board and management team

Morrison has its own board of six Directors. The board of Morrison Plc includes the Chairman and Managing
Director, Finance & Non Regulated Business of AWG acting as non-executive Directors, together with two other
independent non-executives, one of whom was appointed during the year.

The Morrison Chief Executive is responsible for the overall performance of the company. Each regional
operating division is run by its own management and administrative team, and is supported by a small number
of head office employees comprising the finance, human resources and legal functions.

Operation of the board

The Board meets ten times per year to review the company’s strategy and its performance using a balanced score
card. There is a regular Board cycle of additional topics (such as a safety review, competitor review, and a longer
Strategy Review day) and other executives from around the business are regularly invited to attend where
appropriate.

Principal risks and uncertainties

Economic trends

Morrison operates primarily within repair and maintenance framework agreements with local authorities and
housing associations. These agreements have been less susceptible to the UK’s economic challenges than much
of the private sector and revenue and cash conversion have proven resilient. The Company is winning new
business and has a healthy order book pipeline but, in light of the Chancellor’s economic forecasts, is focused on
tight cost control and delivery of higher quality at lower cost.

Morrison is focused on building its portfolio of long-term repair and maintenance contracts as the UK
Government'’s long-term Decent Homes initiative reaches its planned conclusion.

Pensions

The Company contributes to both defined contribution and defined benefit schemes. The financial statements
include contributions to all schemes, shown in the profit and loss account, and an actuarial adjustment relating
to the surplus or deficit associated with defined benefit schemes under FRS 17. Where possible, Morrison’s
liability for ongoing defined benefit scheme deficits is contractually limited by a cap or collar arrangement.

Mobilisation risks

Morrison assigns a mobilisation team made up of specialists from around the business and the local region to
each new contract. This team runs mobilisations to an agreed timetable and schedule, regularly reporting
progress to senior management.

Contractual risk
The majority of Morrison’s contracts are with public authorities. Both the funding of programmes and the
political support for private involvement may be subject to change.

Local Government procurement is driven by the requirement to achieve best value for the tax payer. This puts
pressure on margins within the business and influences the level of risk transfer to the contractor. It also means
that in a competitive environment there is a risk that contracts are only held for one contractual period as the
process is primarily price driven.
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Morrison spreads its contractual risk by maintaining a varied client portfolio and increasing the proportion of its
work held within framework contracts. When assessing potential contracts, we consider whether they fit with
Morrison’s core skills and our established supply chain.

Health & Safety

Morrison is committed to providing a safe working environment and holds national certification to BS OHSAS
18001 Occupational Health and Safety under the monitoring of the British Safety Council. This internationally-
recognised specification promotes a safe and healthy working environment through a framework that allows an
organisation to consistently identify and control its health and safety risks, reduce the potential for accidents,
aid legislative compliance and improve overall performance.

Systems dependence and reliability
The Company uses IT and management processes to coordinate a large volume of work, appointments and

tradespersons. A significant IT or other system failure would be disruptive to Morrison’s business continuity.

The Company mitigates this risk through IT resilience and disaster recovery plans designed to restore service and
a business continuity plan for each operational site.
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Property

Financial performance and Key Performance Indicators

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2011 2010

£m £m

Capital employed at 31 March 11.6 16.2
Operating loss (10.5) (11.2)
Operating cash flow (7.8) (8.2)

Introduction

During 2010/11, the group has continued to pursue the value realisation of its property investments.
Notwithstanding the extremely difficult property market present throughout 2010/11 and which is expected to
continue during 2011/12, this process has allowed further rationalisation of the portfolio, with agreement for
the sale of a significant proportion of one of the major land holdings and sale of the largest commercial
property.

A small but focused management team remains in place to manage the residual property assets and to seek their
disposal for the best value at the appropriate time.

Financial performance

AWG Property’s operating loss for the year was £10.5 million (2010: loss of £11.2 million) on a reduced turnover
of £16.6 million (2010: £17.7 million) as a result of the change in strategy for the business. Given the continuing
difficult property market, the review of the likely value of certain liabilities within the portfolio has resulted in a
charge of £5.1 million in relation to the final anticipated outcome over the full term of those liabilities.

Management

AWG Property has its own board, which consists of one Anglian Water Group Limited Director (the Managing
Director, Finance and Non Regulated Business), the Managing Director of AWG Property and two further
Executive Directors. The Managing Director of AWG Property oversees the day-to-day operations.

Risks

AWG Property faces a variety of business risks. The principal risk is the economic cycle, which property
developments tend to follow. The current economic environment presents risks in relation to the financial
stability of joint venture partners and maturity of debt funding on individual properties. The AWG Property
strategy mitigates these by; ensuring that the assets are able to generate sufficient income to service the interest
costs; and having an asset management strategy to add value to which the funding counterparties are also
committed. The combination of these is intended to mitigate the requirement to realise value from such assets
in an adverse property market.

Pensions
The majority of employees participate in the group defined contribution scheme.

Outlook
AWG Property will focus on the controlled realisation of value from its remaining property portfolio.
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Other business activities

The 'Other’ business segment mainly comprises head office, amortisation of fair value adjustments made on
acquisition, Celtic Anglian Water which operates wastewater treatment works in the Republic of Ireland,
Alpheus Environmental which operates industrial and commercial wastewater treatment works, and residual
international interests.

Pensions

At 31 March 2011 the gross deficit for the group (before deferred tax) was £83.7 million (2010: £200.9 million).
There were a number of actuarial changes in the year, principally legislative changes to indexing of liabilities. In
addition, asset performance was above expectations. Future additional contributions will continue to be made
in line with actuarial advice.

Treasury management

Group financing, including debt, interest costs and foreign exchange, is substantially managed by a central
treasury team reporting to the Managing Director, Finance & Non Regulated Business. Treasury policy continues
to be focused on the efficient and effective management of cash and financial resources within the group.

The central treasury function actively:

e ensures that lenders covenants are met;

e secures funds through a balanced approach to financial markets and maturities;

¢ manages interest rates to minimise financial exposures and minimise interest costs;
¢ invests temporary surplus cash to best advantage at minimal financial risk;

* maintains an excellent reputation with providers of finance and rating agencies;

e promotes management techniques and systems;

e enhances control of financial resources; and

e monitors counter party credit exposures.

The group’s board, through the Finance, Treasury and Energy Policy Group, regularly reviews treasury policy,
organisation and reporting to ensure continued effectiveness and relevance. More information on treasury
management can be found in note 19 of the consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity

The group’s objective is to maintain flexibility and continuity of funding through access to different markets and
debt instruments. At 31 March 2011 the group held cash, deposits and current asset investments of £697.4
million (2010: £814.4 million) and had undrawn committed multi-currency facilities of £763 million (2010: £605
million). These resources are maintained to ensure liquidity and the continuation of the group’s investment
programme. The maturity profile of the group’s borrowings is set out in note 19 of the consolidated financial
statements.

Capital structure

The group’s capital structure is largely driven by the requirements of Anglian Water’s capital expenditure
programme, which is met by a combination of cash flow and debt issuance with covenant tests at the Anglian
Water and Osprey Acquisitions Limited levels. At 31 March 2011 Anglian Water’s and Osprey Acquisitions’ net
debt to capital value ratio (net debt as defined in the Common Terms Agreement expressed as a percentage of
Anglian Water’'s regulated capital value) was 78.5% (2010: 80.6%) and 85.4% (2010: 87.3%) respectively.

Borrowing covenants

The financing within Anglian Water is secured under a common terms agreement with investors. All other
group borrowings are raised or guaranteed by Osprey Acquisitions Limited, Anglian Water (Osprey) Financing
Plc, AWG Parent Co Limited, AWG Group Limited and, in certain instances, subsidiary companies. The central
treasury function is responsible for monitoring ongoing compliance with the group’s financial covenants, which
principally relate to Anglian Water’s ratio of net debt to Regulatory Capital Value and interest coverage. At 31
March 2011, all group companies were compliant with all covenants.

Interest rates

The group’s policy, as agreed by the board, is to achieve an efficient mix of funding at fixed rates of interest,
floating rates of interest and rates indexed to retail prices. This mix also reflects utilisation of interest rate swaps
so as to manage the group’s net exposure to interest rate and retail price variations.
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Notes
2 Turnover
Turnover (including share of joint ventures)
Less: share of turnover of joint ventures
Group turnover
Operating costs:
Operating costs before exceptional operating profits/(costs) and goodwill amortisation
4 Exceptional operating profits/(costs)
Goodwill amortisation
3 Group operating costs
Group operating profit
Share of operating profit in joint ventures
— Before exceptional operating profit
4 — Exceptional operating profit
Total operating profit
— Before exceptional operating profits/(costs) and goodwill amortisation
— Exceptional operating profits/(costs)
- Goodwill amortisation
2 Total operating profit
5 Net interest payable and similar charges
6 Other finance costs (net)
7 (Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before taxation
8 Tax on (loss)/profit on ordinary activities

(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities after taxation
Equity minority interest

(Loss)/profit for the financial year

The results above all arise from continuing operations.

Notes 1 to 30 are an integral part of these financial statements.

2011 2010
£m £m
1,418.3 1,431.1
(6.3) (35.5)
1,412.0 1,395.6
(979.2) (942.9)
11.9 (10.8)
(72.1) (72.1)
(1,039.4) (1,025.8)
372.6 369.8
1.7 1.9
3.7 -

434.5 454.6
15.6 (10.8)
(72.1) (72.1)
378.0 371.7
(381.2) (313.4)
(9.2) (16.0)
(12.4) 423
(19.2) (7.9)
(31.6) 34.4
(3.0) (2.8)
(34.6) 31.6

There was no difference between both the (loss)/profit on ordinary activities before taxation and the (loss)/profit

for the financial year stated above, and their historical cost equivalents.
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2011 2010
Notes £m fm
(Loss)/profit for the financial year
Group (37.2) 32.1
Joint ventures 2.6 (0.5)
(34.6) 31.6
Actuarial gain/(loss) recognised on the pension schemes
22(c) - Group 90.3 (117.9)
— Joint ventures - (1.5)
Current tax relating to the actuarial (gain)/loss on the pension schemes
- Group - 5.3
— Joint ventures - 0.1
Deferred tax relating to the actuarial (gain)/loss on the pension schemes
- Group (25.3) 27.7
— Joint ventures - 0.3
Impact of change in tax rate on deferred tax on pension schemes (1.2) -
Currency translation differences on foreign currency net investments - (0.2)
Total recognised gains and losses relating to the year 29.2 (54.6)
Total recognised gains and losses relating to the year
- Group 26.6 (53.0)
— Joint ventures 2.6 (1.6)
Group statement of movement in shareholders’ funds
for the year ended 31 March 2011
2011 2010
Notes £m fm
Total recognised gains and losses relating to the year 29.2 (54.6)
11 Dividends (217.2) (16.9)
Movement in shareholders’ funds (188.0) (71.5)
Shareholders’ funds at the beginning of the year 765.1 836.6
Shareholders’ funds at 31 March 577.1 765.1
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Notes

12
13
14

15
16

17
17

18
18

20

22(d)
22(d)

23
24
24

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Investments
Joint ventures
— Share of gross assets
— Share of gross liabilities
- Amounts included in provisions

Other investments
Total investments

Current assets

Stocks

Debtors

Investments

Cash at bank and in hand (including short-term deposits)

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Short-term borrowings
Other creditors

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than
one year

Loans and other borrowings

Other creditors

Provisions for liabilities
Net assets excluding pension assets and liabilities

Pension schemes with net assets
Pension schemes with net liabilities
Net assets including pension assets and liabilities

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Share premium account
Profit and loss reserve

Total shareholders’ funds
Minority interest

Capital employed

Group Company

2011 2010 201 2010

£m £m fm £m
1,128.5 1,200.6 - -
5,615.6 5,606.5 - -
65.5 90.6 - -
(65.5) (93.6) - -
- 3.0 - -

- - 1,211.2 1,211.2

- - 1,211.2 1,211.2

6,744.1 6,807.1 1,211.2 1,211.2
29.5 28.3 - -
397.2 369.6 - -
49.0 89.6 - -

648.4 724.8 0.2 0.6

1,124.1 1,212.3 0.2 0.6
(154.6) (21.4) - -
(468.5) (477.3) - -
(623.1) (498.7) - -

501.0 713.6 0.2 0.6

7,245.1 7,520.7 1,211.4 1,211.8
(6.360.2) (6,381.1) - -
(134.0) (130.0) - -
(6,494.2) (6,511.1) - -
(107.0) (95.5) - -

643.9 914.1 1,211.4 1,211.8
5.8 1.4 - -
(67.7) (146.0) - -

582.0 769.5 1,211.4 1,211.8

1,096.2 1,096.2 1,096.2 1,096.2

(519.1) (331.1) 115.2 115.6

577.1 765.1 1,211.4 1,211.8
4.9 4.4 - -

582.0 769.5 1.211.4 1,211.8

Notes 1 to 30 are an integral part of these financial statements.

The flnanC|aI statements were approved by the board of Dlrectors on 2 O June 2011 and signed on its behalf by:

Sir Adrian Montague CBE
Chairman

(/Z/ oy, / <

’1/
Scott Longhurst
Managing Director, Finance & Non Regulated Business
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Anglian Water Group Limited

Group cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Notes

(a)

(b)

(@]

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Returns on investments and servicing of finance

Interest received

Interest paid

Issue costs paid

Interest element of finance lease rental payments

Dividends paid to minority interests

Net cash outflow for returns on investments and servicing of finance

Taxation

Capital expenditure and financial investment

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Grants and contributions received

Disposal of tangible fixed assets

Net cash outflow for capital expenditure and financial investment

Equity dividends paid

Net cash outflow before management of liquid resources and financing

Management of liquid resources
Decrease in short-term deposits and investments

Financing

Redemption of preference shares

Increase in amounts borrowed

Repayment of amounts borrowed

Capital element of finance lease rental payments
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing

Decrease in cash

The notes (a) to (d) form part of this cash flow statement.

2011 2010
£m fm
616.4 646.7
6.3 6.1
(291.2) (325.7)
(14.0) (1.5)
(3.3) (3.4
(2.4) (2.3)
(304.6) (326.8)
(0.3) (2.2)
(280.2) (355.4)
24.0 19.8
0.9 1.1
(255.3) (334.5)
(217.2) (16.9)
(161.0) (33.7)
86.4 120.6
- (115.0)
483.5 205.8
(437.0) (308.3)
(2.5) (2.2)
44.0 (219.7)
(30.6) (132.8)
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Anglian Water Group Limited

Notes to the group cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March 2011

(@) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities

2011 2010

£m fm

Group operating profit 372.6 369.8
Depreciation (net of amortisation of deferred grants and contributions) 263.1 256.2
Goodwill amortisation 72.1 72.1
Profit on sale of fixed assets (0.9) (0.9)
Difference between pension charge and cash contributions (35.5) (35.0)
Net movement in provisions (1.9) (0.3)

Working capital:

(Increase)/decrease in stocks (1.2) 2.2
Increase in debtors (27.8) (37.9)
(Decrease)/increase in creditors (24.1) 20.5
(53.1) (15.2)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 616.4 646.7

(b) Management of liquid resources
This comprises movements in short-term deposits which have maturity dates of up to one year.

(o) Analysis of net debt
At At
1 April Cash Non-cash 31 March
2010 flows movements 2011
£m £m £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 236.5 (30.6) - 205.9
Deposits and investments 577.9 (86.4) - 491.5
Debt due within one year (21.4) 9.0 (142.2) (154.6)
Debt due after one year (6,381.1) (39.0) 59.9 (6,360.2)
(5,588.1) (147.0) (82.3) (5.817.4)

Non-cash movements comprise indexation of index-linked loan stock, indexation of Retail Price Index (RPI)
swaps, transfers between categories of debt, amortisation of discounts and expenses relating to debt issues and
amortisation of fair value adjustments.

Included within deposits and investments above are £442.5 million (2010: £488.3 million) of short-term deposits
maturing within three months, which are included in the heading ‘cash at bank and in hand’ in the balance
sheet.

At 31 March 2011, £131.7 million (2010: £188.1 million) of the group’s cash at bank and in hand and £470.6
million (2010: £488.9 million) of the deposits and investments were held in the Anglian Water Services Holdings
Limited group. In order for these amounts to be made available to the rest of the group, Anglian Water
Services Limited must satisfy certain covenants, which were put in place on 30 July 2002 following a financial
restructuring, prior to declaring dividends. A further £12.3 million (2010: £17.4 million) of the group’s deposits
and investments was held as collateral for outstanding loan notes. In addition, £1.9 million (2010: £0.1 million)
of the group’s cash at bank and in hand and £2.5 million (2010: £10.7 million) of the deposits and investments
were held by Rutland Insurance Limited (the group’s insurance captive) in order to maintain its required
solvency ratio.
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Anglian Water Group Limited

Notes to the group cash flow statement (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2011

(d) Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

2011 2010

£m fm

Decrease in cash (30.6) (132.8)
Decrease in short-term deposits and investments (86.4) (120.6)
Redemption of preference shares - 115.0
Increase in amounts borrowed (483.5) (205.8)
Repayment of amounts borrowed 437.0 308.3
Capital element of finance lease rental payments 25 2.2
Issue costs relating to new borrowings 14.0 1.5
Amortisation of discount and expenses relating to debt issues (4.2) (2.8)
Amortisation of fair value adjustments 31.8 31.9
Indexation of loan stock and RPI swaps (109.9) (17.7)
Exchange differences - (0.1)
Movement in net debt (229.3) (20.9)
Net debt at the beginning of the year (5,588.1) (5,567.2)
Net debt at 31 March (5,817.4) (5,588.1)
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b)

Anglian Water Group Limited

Notes to the group financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Accounting policies
The principal accounting policies are summarised below. They have all been applied consistently throughout the
current and preceding year.

Basis of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with
applicable UK accounting standards and with the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991.

Basis of preparation

The group financial statements comprise a consolidation of the financial statements of the company and all its
subsidiary undertakings at 31 March. The results of companies acquired or disposed of are consolidated from the
effective date of acquisition or to the effective date of disposal. Intra-group sales and profit are eliminated fully
on consolidation.

The Directors have undertaken a detailed review to assess the liquidity requirements of the group compared
against the cash and facilities available to the group, and have a reasonable expectation that the group and
company have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this
reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

i Joint ventures
Joint ventures are those entities over whose activities the group exercises joint control, established by
contractual agreement. The group’s interests in jointly controlled enterprises are accounted for by the
gross equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost.

The consolidated financial statements include the group's share of the total recognised gains and losses of
the jointly controlled enterprises on an equity accounting basis, from the date that joint control commences
until the date that joint control ceases.

Jointly controlled operations and assets, where each party has its own separate interest in particular risks
and rewards, are accounted for by including the attributable share of the assets, liabilities and cash flows
measured according to the terms of the agreement.

To the extent that joint ventures have net liabilities and a contractual commitment exists for the group to
settle those net liabilities, the aggregate amount is added back to investments and transferred to
provisions.

ii. Associates
Associates are entities over which the group exercises significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for by the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost.
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d)

e)

Anglian Water Group Limited

Notes to the group financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

Individual transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into local currency at the actual
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into local currency at the rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Profits and losses on
both individual foreign currency transactions during the year and monetary assets and liabilities are dealt with
in the profit and loss account.

On consolidation, the profit and loss accounts of the overseas subsidiaries are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year and the balance sheets at the exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The
exchange differences arising as a result of translating profit and loss accounts at average rates and restating
opening net assets at closing rates are taken to reserves. Exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
are taken to reserves to the extent that they provide an effective hedge of the exchange differences arising on
net investments in foreign subsidiaries.

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an overseas subsidiary, associate or joint venture is calculated using
exchange rates applicable at the date of acquisition and is subsequently re-translated at each balance sheet
date.

Turnover
Turnover represents the income receivable (excluding Value Added Tax) in the ordinary course of business for
goods and services provided and, in respect of unbilled charges, includes an accrual for measured income.

Turnover from sale of development properties which are not held for the long-term is recorded when a sale is
completed in accordance with the profit recognition criteria in 1(e) below. Turnover includes sales of directly held
work in progress and interests in special purpose subsidiaries and joint ventures if the substance of the transaction
is the sale of the underlying property.

For Anglian Water the measured income accrual is an estimation of the amount of main water and wastewater
charges unbilled at the year-end. The accrual is estimated using a defined methodology based upon weighted
average water consumption by tariff, which is calculated based upon historical billing information. The
calculation is sensitive to estimated consumption for measured domestic customers (a fall of one cubic metre in
average annual consumption will reduce turnover by approximately £3.9 million).

Profit recognition policy

i Property development
Profit is included in the financial statements in connection with property developments when a legally
binding contract for the sale of the development has been entered into and legal completion has taken
place before the year-end. When legally binding contracts exist, profits on the construction and
refurbishment elements of the development are determined by reference to an internal valuation of
measured work carried out less related costs of production. Provision is made in full for foreseeable losses.
Other profits arising from developments are included in the financial statements only when legal
completion of the sale of the development has been effected.

ii. Claims
In establishing turnover and profit, credit is taken for claims only when negotiations are at an advanced
stage and the outcome is substantially agreed by the client. Having released such claims in the profit and
loss account, provision is made whenever ultimate payment seems doubtful.

iii. Insurance claims and other recoveries
Where some of the forecast expenditure on a contract is expected to be reimbursed by another party (such
as an insurance company) the reimbursement is recognised only when receipt of the amount is virtually
certain.
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Anglian Water Group Limited

Notes to the group financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Accounting policies (continued)

Research and development

Research and development expenditure is charged to the profit and loss account in the year in which it is
incurred. Expenditure on fixed assets relating to development projects is written off over the expected useful
life of those assets.

Bid and pre-contract costs
Bid and pre-contract costs are written off as an expense until such time as the award of a contract becomes
virtually certain.

Exceptional items

Exceptional items are one-off items which derive from events or transactions that fall within ordinary activities of
the entity and which individually or, if of a similar type, in aggregate need to be disclosed by virtue of their size or
nature to enable a reader of the financial statements to understand the results for a particular period.

Those items which are not related to the group's normal trading activities, for example, costs of a fundamental
restructuring, impairment of fixed assets and profit or loss on sale of businesses and related costs are shown
separately on the face of the profit and loss account after operating profit and before interest. All other
exceptional items are included within operating profit.

Taxation
Current tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or
recovered) using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided on timing differences, arising from the different treatment for accounts and taxation
purposes of events and transactions recognised in the financial statements of the current and previous years.
Deferred tax is calculated at the rates at which it is estimated that taxation will arise. The deferred tax
balances are discounted using the post tax yields to maturity that could be obtained at the balance sheet date
on government bonds with maturity dates similar to those of the deferred tax assets and liabilities. For assets
with a life in excess of 30 years, an average rate based on bonds with a life up to 49 years has been used as no
other quoted rates are available.

Deferred tax is not provided in respect of timing differences arising from the sale or revaluation of fixed assets
unless, by the balance sheet date, a binding commitment to sell the asset has been entered into and it is
unlikely that any gain will be rolled over.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is regarded as more likely than not that there will be
suitable taxable profits against which the deferred tax asset can be recoverable in future years.

Calculation of deferred tax on infrastructure assets:

Infrastructure assets effectively have an unlimited life and a notional depreciation charge, the infrastructure
renewal charge (IRC), is offset against the gross network asset value (see note 1(I)). For the purposes of
estimating the deferred tax liability in relation to infrastructure assets, the useful life over which the
underlying differences reverse is estimated by deflating the current cost based IRC to an appropriate deemed
historic cost based depreciation charge.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are approved or committed. Interim
dividends are recognised in the period in which they are paid or when the company has a constructive or legal
commitment to pay the dividend.
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Anglian Water Group Limited

Notes to the group financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Accounting policies (continued)

Goodwill

On the acquisition of a subsidiary undertaking, fair values are attributed to the net identifiable assets or liabilities
acquired. Goodwill represents the difference between the fair value of the purchase consideration and the fair
value of the net assets acquired. Fair values are assessed in accordance with FRS 7 ‘Fair values in acquisition
accounting’. On disposal of a subsidiary undertaking, any goodwill that has not been amortised through the
profit and loss account is taken into account in determining the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill is generally amortised over 20 years, being the Directors' best estimate of the useful economic life, or the
life of the contract if less than 20 years.

Goodwill is tested for impairment where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. In performing these tests assumptions are made in respect of the discount rate applied to
the future cash flows of income-generating units. This discount rate is selected on the basis of the inherent risk
associated with the income-generating unit.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Tangible fixed assets comprise:

i. Infrastructure assets
Infrastructure assets comprise a network of systems consisting of mains and sewers, impounding and
pumped raw water storage reservoirs, sludge pipelines and sea outfalls. Investment expenditure on
infrastructure assets relating to increases in capacity or enhancements of the network and on maintaining
the operating capability of the network in accordance with defined standards of service is treated as an
addition and recorded at cost along with related capital grants and contributions.

The depreciation charge for infrastructure assets is the estimated level of annual expenditure required to
maintain the operating capability of the network, which is based on Anglian Water Services Limited’s Asset
Management Plan, which is independently certified by the Reporter.

ii. Other assets
Other assets comprise land and non-operational buildings, operational assets (comprising sites used for
water and wastewater treatment, pumping or storage where not classified as infrastructure) and vehicles,
plant and equipment, and are included at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes own work
capitalised comprising the direct costs of materials, labour and applicable overheads. Interest costs are not
capitalised.

Freehold land is not depreciated, nor are assets in the course of construction until commissioned.
Depreciation of other assets is calculated at rates expected to write off the cost less the estimated residual
value of the relevant assets on a straight line basis over their estimated economic lives, which are primarily

as follows:

Operational assets 30 - 100 years
Buildings 30 - 60 years
Fixed plant 12 - 40 years
Vehicles, mobile plant and equipment 3-10years

Fixed assets are assessed for impairment, in accordance with FRS 11 ‘Impairment of fixed assets and goodwill’, if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
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Anglian Water Group Limited

Notes to the group financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Accounting policies (continued)

Grants and contributions

Grants and contributions for capital expenditure include government grants, infrastructure and connection
charges, developer payments for water and sewer requisitions, sewer adoption fees and other contributions from
third parties.

Grants and contributions to capital expenditure, other than those relating to infrastructure assets, are credited to
a deferral account within creditors and are released to the profit and loss account evenly over the expected useful
life of the relevant asset.

Grants and contributions to capital expenditure on infrastructure assets are deducted from the costs of these
assets.

Revenue grants and contributions are credited to the profit and loss account in the year to which they apply.

Leased assets

Where assets are financed by leasing arrangements which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of an asset to the lessee (finance leases), the assets are treated as if they had been purchased and the
corresponding capital cost is shown as an obligation to the lessor. Leasing payments are treated as consisting of a
capital element and finance costs; the capital element reducing the obligation to the lessor and the finance costs
being written off to the profit and loss account over the primary period of the lease. The assets are depreciated
over the shorter of their estimated useful lives and the lease period. All other leases are regarded as operating
leases. Rental costs arising under operating leases are expensed over the term of the lease.

Investments
Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost less any provision for impairment. For investments in subsidiary
undertakings, cost includes long-term loans that are not expected to be repaid in the foreseeable future.

Stocks and work in progress

Stocks are stated at cost less any provision necessary to recognise damage and obsolescence. Work in progress,
with the exception of long-term contract work in progress, is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost includes labour, materials, transport and attributable overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated
proceeds from the sale of stock less all further costs to be incurred.

Long-term contracts

Amounts recoverable on long-term contracts are stated at cost plus attributable profits, less provision for any
known or anticipated losses, and include payments on account and are included in debtors. Payments on account
in excess of amounts recoverable on long-term contracts are included in creditors.

Bad debts

In Anglian Water, the bad debt provision is calculated by applying expected recovery rates, based on actual
historical cash collection performance, to the aged debt profile. In the remaining subsidiary undertakings, specific
provisions are made for those debts on which recovery is regarded as doubtful.
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Anglian Water Group Limited

Notes to the group financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Accounting policies (continued)

Current asset investments

Cash deposits with a maturity of greater than three months are classified as current asset investments within
the balance sheet. Cash deposits with a maturity of greater than one day but less than three months are
classified as cash at bank and in hand within the balance sheet but are classified within liquid resources for the
purposes of the cash flow statement.

Borrowings

A financial liability is initially recognised net of issue costs incurred. Costs that are incurred directly in connection
with the issue of a capital instrument are netted against the liability and amortised at a constant rate over the life
of the underlying instrument.

Indexation on index-linked borrowings is calculated with reference to the current applicable UK RPI index
compared to the UK RPI index applicable at the time of issue. It is payable on the maturity of each respective
borrowing. The total interest charge on the index-linked borrowings is a product of the indexation accrued to
date and the nominal coupon rate payable on the indexed principal of the borrowings.

Financial instruments

Derivative instruments are used for hedging purposes in line with the group’s risk management policy and no
speculative trading in financial instruments is undertaken. Loans and other borrowings are recorded using the
contracted rates implicit in the financial instruments used to hedge the group’s exposure to fluctuations in
currency rates. Similarly, interest is charged to the profit and loss account based on the contracted interest
rates.

Interest rate swaps and swaptions are used to manage the group’s interest cost and to hedge the group’s
exposure to movements in interest rates. The interest payable or receivable on such swaps is accrued in the
same way as interest arising on deposits or borrowings. Premiums on swaptions are included in the calculation
of the contracted rates implicit in the instrument. Interest rate swaps and swaptions are not revalued to fair
value prior to maturity.

Currency swaps are used to hedge foreign currency investments. The future currency exchange within such
contracts is revalued to the rate of exchange at the balance sheet date and any unrealised gain or loss is
matched with that of the underlying asset or liability in reserves. The interest coupon on such swaps is accrued
in the same way as that on borrowings and deposits. Where a financial instrument is used to manage interest
cost but is not part of a hedging relationship, gains are recognised on maturity of the instrument and losses are
recognised immediately where there is an estimated future net cash outflow over the remaining life of the
instrument.

On 23 November 2006 Osprey Acquisitions Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Anglian Water Group
Limited, acquired AWG Plc and its subsidiaries. On acquisition, fair values were attributed to the net
identifiable assets and liabilities acquired in accordance with the requirements of FRS 6 ‘Acquisitions and
mergers’. The fair value adjustment made to loans and borrowings on acquisition is being amortised over the
life of the individual debt instruments to which it relates and is included within interest payable.

The group has not adopted FRS 26 ‘Financial instruments: recognition and measurement’ and therefore the

disclosure requirements of FRS 29 ‘Financial instruments: disclosures’ are not applicable. The disclosure
requirements of FRS 13 ‘Derivatives and other financial instruments: disclosures’ have been applied.
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Anglian Water Group Limited

Notes to the group financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Accounting policies (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event for which it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount can be reliably estimated. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability. The group’s policy on specific areas is as follows:

i Onerous lease costs
Provision is made for the expected future costs of property and other leases to the extent that these costs
are not expected to be of future benefit to the business, net of any recoveries from sub-leases.

ii. Other onerous contracts
Provision is made for contractual obligations on financial instruments that are not part of a hedging
relationship where a future net cash outflow is forecast on the remaining life of the instrument.

iii. Closure costs
Once irrevocable decisions have been made to close an operation, provisions are made to reflect the extent
to which obligations, including redundancy costs, have been incurred that are not expected to be covered
by future profits of the operation. Provisions include only the direct costs of termination and any operating
losses up to the date of the termination, after taking account of the aggregate profit, if any, to be
recognised from the future profits of the operation.

iv. Redundancy costs
Redundancy costs are charged to the profit and loss account in the year in which the group both becomes
irrevocably committed to incurring the costs and has raised a valid expectation with, and announced the
main features of the programme to, affected employees or their representatives.

V. Self insurance
Some subsidiary companies self insure the risks where it is commercially prudent to do so. Provision is made
in respect of notified claims to the extent that it is probable that a cash settlement will arise. Provision is
made in the group’s captive insurance company, Rutland Insurance Limited, for the expected cost of claims
incurred but not reported.

Pensions

i Defined Benefit Schemes
For defined benefit schemes, pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are
measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method and are discounted at the current rate
of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The
increase in the present value of the liabilities of the group’s defined benefit pension schemes expected
to arise from employee service in the year is charged to operating profit. The expected return on the
schemes’ assets and the increase during the year in the present value of the schemes’ liabilities arising
from the passage of time are included in other finance charges. Actuarial gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses.

Pension schemes’ surpluses, to the extent that they are considered recoverable, or deficits, subject to
agreed liability caps, are recognised in full and presented on the face of the balance sheet, net of the
related deferred tax.

ii. Defined Contribution Schemes

The cost of defined contribution schemes is charged to the profit and loss account in the year in which
the contributions become payable.
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Anglian Water Group Limited
Notes to the group financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Accounting policies (continued)

Key assumptions and significant judgments
The group uses estimates and makes judgments in the preparation of its financial statements. The areas where
the most judgment is required are highlighted below.

Measured income accrual

For Anglian Water the measured income accrual is an estimation of the amount of main water and
wastewater charges unbilled at the year-end. The accrual is estimated using a defined methodology based
upon weighted average water consumption by tariff, which is calculated based upon historical billing
information. The calculation is sensitive to estimated consumption for measured domestic customers (a fall
of one cubic metre in average annual consumption will reduce turnover by approximately £3.9 million).

Pensions

The group operates a number of defined benefit schemes (most of which are closed to new members) as
well as defined contribution schemes. Under FRS 17 ‘Retirement benefits’ the group has recognised a
pension deficit (before deferred tax) of £83.7 million (2010: £200.9 million). The main assumptions are set
out in note 22 of the financial statements.

Tangible fixed assets

The tangible fixed assets used in the group are primarily the infrastructure and operational assets of the
regulated water business. Operational assets have estimated economic lives of between 30 and 100 years
and the depreciation charge is clearly sensitive to the lives allocated to the various types of asset. The
depreciation charge for infrastructure assets is based on the level of future annual expenditure which
requires judgment in determining this estimate. Asset lives are reviewed regularly and changed where
necessary to reflect the current view on their remaining lives in light of the technological change,
prospective economic utilisation and the physical condition of the assets.

Taxation

The group’s tax charge is based on the profit for the year and tax rates in force at the balance sheet date.
Estimation of the tax charge involves an assessment of the potential tax treatment of certain items which
will only be resolved once finally agreed with the tax authorities.
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Anglian Water Group Limited

Notes to the group financial statements (continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2011

Segmental analysis

By class of business for the year ended 31 March 2011
At 31 March 2011 the group was organised into three main businesses:
e Anglian Water; regulated water, wastewater and environmental service provider to domestic and industrial

customers in eastern England and Hartlepool.
e Morrison Facilities Services; provides repair and maintenance and capital investment services to local authority

clients.

e AWG Property; commercial and residential property developer.

Anglian Water

Morrison Facilities Services
AWG Property

Other @

Less: Intersegmental trading

Net debt
Current tax
Deferred tax

Total
- Group
— Joint ventures

Total
operating
profit before
exceptional
operating Net
profits and Exceptional Total operating
goodwill operating Goodwill operating assets/
Turnover  amortisation profits  amortisation profit (liabilities)®
£m £m £m £m £m £m
1,092.3 447.3 - (68.7) 378.6 6,439.8
274.1 14.2 2.9 (3.4) 13.7 54.4
16.6 (10.5) - - (10.5) 11.6
36.0 (15.1) 12.7 - (2.4) (39.4)
(0.7) (1.4) - - (1.4) -
1,418.3 434.5 15.6 (72.1) 378.0 6,466.4
(5.817.4)
(3.7)
(63.3)
582.0
1,412.0 432.8 11.9 (72.1) 372.6
6.3 1.7 3.7 - 5.4

" The ‘Other’ business segment mainly comprises head office, amortisation of fair value adjustments made on
acquisition, Celtic Anglian Water which operates wastewater treatment works in the Republic of Ireland, Alpheus
Environmental which operates industrial and commercial wastewater treatment works, and a few residual

international interests.

®  Net operating assets/(liabilities) are shown before the deduction of net debt, current tax and deferred tax.
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Anglian Water Group Limited
Notes to the group financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Segmental analysis (continued)

By class of business for the year ended 31 March 2010

Total
operating
profit before
exceptional
operating Net
costs and Exceptional Total operating
goodwill operating Goodwill operating assets/
Turnover amortisation costs amortisation profit (liabilities)
fm £m £m fm fm £m
Anglian Water 1,099.8 472.0 (8.8) (68.7) 394.5 6,415.4
Morrison Facilities Services 267.3 12.4 - (3.4) 9.0 50.9
AWG Property 17.7 (11.2) - - (11.2) 16.2
Other 47.2 (18.6) (2.0) - (20.6) (67.6)
Less: Intersegmental trading (0.9) - - - - -
1,431.1 454.6 (10.8) (72.1) 371.7 6,414.9
Net debt (5,588.1)
Current tax (5.2)
Deferred tax (52.1)
769.5
Total
- Group 1,395.6 452.7 (10.8) (72.1) 369.8
— Joint ventures 35.5 1.9 - - 1.9
By geographical segment
Net operating
Turnover Total operating profit assets/(liabilities)
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
£m fm £m fm £m fm
United Kingdom 1,393.4 1,393.6 371.8 367.7 6,468.1 6,421.1
Europe 21.2 34.7 3.7 4.3 0.9 (0.6)
Rest of world 3.7 2.8 2.5 (0.3) (2.6) (5.6)
1,418.3 1,431.1 378.0 371.7 6,466.4 6,414.9

There is no material difference between turnover by geographical origin and by geographical destination.
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Group operating costs

2011 2010
Before Before
exceptional Exceptional exceptional  Exceptional
operating operating operating operating
profits profits® Total costs costs"” Total
£m £m £m fm fm fm
Raw materials and consumables 52.1 - 52.1 39.0 - 39.0
Other operating costs 455.6 (11.9) 443.7 456.0 1.2 457.2
Staff costs (see note 9) 259.4 - 259.4 246.8 9.6 256.4
Change in stocks of finished goods and work in
progress (0.9) - (0.9) 1.7 - 1.7
Own work capitalised (49.2) - (49.2) (55.9) - (55.9)
Profit on sale of fixed assets® (0.9) - (0.9) (0.9) - (0.9)
Operating costs before depreciation and
amortisation 716.1 (11.9) 704.2 686.7 10.8 697.5
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 271.0 - 271.0 263.6 - 263.6
Amortisation of deferred grants and contributions (7.9) - (7.9) (7.4) - (7.4)
Depreciation net of amortisation of deferred
grants and contributions 263.1 - 263.1 256.2 - 256.2
Total before amortisation of intangible
assets 979.2 (11.9) 967.3 942.9 10.8 953.7
Amortisation of intangible assets 72.1 - 721 72.1 - 72.1
Group operating costs 1,051.3 (11.9) 1,039.4 1,015.0 10.8 1,025.8

" The exceptional operating profits in 2011 of £11.9 million relate to the settlement of outstanding items associated

with prior year disposals (see note 4). The exceptional operating costs of £10.8 million in 2010 relate to
restructuring and other costs.

®  The profit on sale of fixed assets relates to various sales of surplus land and assets.

Exceptional items

2011 2010
£m fm
Exceptional operating profits/(costs)
Group 11.9 (10.8)
Share of joint ventures 3.7 -
15.6 (10.8)

The settlement of outstanding items associated with prior year disposals has resulted in the release of £11.9 million in
respect of amounts previously provided.

Following the termination of a contract within one of the group’s joint ventures, a settlement gain of £3.7 million has
been recognised on the defined benefit pension scheme.

Exceptional operating costs for the year ended 31 March 2010 relate to redundancy and other one-off costs incurred
to reposition the Anglian Water business to meet the challenge of the Final Determination published by Ofwat in
November 2009, £8.8 million, and senior management restructuring costs, £2.0 million.

A tax charge of £1.0 million (2010: £nil) has been included in respect of these items.
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Net interest payable and similar charges

Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts

Interest payable on other loans including financing expenses
Indexation

Interest payable on finance leases

Amortisation of fair value adjustments

Group interest and similar charges payable

Share of joint venture interest payable
Total interest and similar charges payable

Group interest receivable
Net interest payable and similar charges

Total
- Group
— Joint ventures

Other finance costs (net)

Unwinding of discount on onerous lease obligation provision (see note 20)
Defined benefit pension scheme interest charge (see note 22(b))

(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before taxation
(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before taxation is stated after charging/(crediting):

Profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets

Operating lease rentals

— Land and buildings

— Plant and machinery

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets (net of amortisation of deferred grants and contributions)
— Owned assets

— Under finance leases

Amortisation of goodwill - subsidiaries

Research and development expenditure

Fees paid to the auditors:

— Auditing the company's financial statements

— Auditing of accounts of associates of the company pursuant to legislation (including that of
countries outside Great Britain)

—  For other services supplied pursuant to regulatory requirements

— For other services

Total fees paid to the auditors

2011 2010
£m fm
- (0.6)
(304.8) (328.2)
(109.9) (17.7)
(3.2) (3.0)
31.8 31.9
(386.1) (317.6)
(1.6) (2.2)
(387.7) (319.8)
6.5 6.4
(381.2) (313.4)
(379.6) (311.2)
(1.6) (2.2)
2011 2010
£m fm
(0.6) 0.1)
(8.6) (15.9)
(9.2) (16.0)
2011 2010
£m £m
(0.9) (0.9)
12.7 12.1
5.7 5.3
255.1 248.1
8.0 8.1
721 72.1
0.2 0.4
0.6 0.6
0.1 0.1
0.8 0.5
1.5 1.2
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Taxation
2011 2010
£m fm
Analysis of charge in the year
Current tax:
UK corporation tax — current year - 12.7
Adjustment in respect of previous periods (4.7) -
Share of joint ventures current tax 0.2 0.2
(4.5) 12.9
Foreign tax 0.5 0.6
Total current tax (credit)/charge (4.0) 13.5
Deferred tax:
Charge for timing differences arising in year 14.8 27.4
Impact of discounting on deferred tax liability 0.6 (9.9)
Impact of decrease/(increase) in discount rates 5.0 (1.8)
Adjustments in respect of previous periods 14.3 (21.3)
Effect of reduction in corporation tax rate (12.5) -
Share of joint ventures deferred tax 1.0 -
Total deferred tax charge/(credit) (see note 21) 23.2 (5.6)
Total tax charge on (loss)/profit on ordinary activities 19.2 7.9

The post-tax yield to maturity on UK Government bonds is used to discount the gross deferred tax liability of the
group. Movements in the discount rates gave rise to a charge of £5.0 million (2010: credit of £1.8 million) in the year.
If all UK gilt rates moved by 0.25%, a change in the tax charge of between £10.0 million and £15.0 million would
occur.

During the year, as a result of the change in the UK corporation tax rate from 28% to 26% that is effective from 1
April 2011, all relevant deferred tax balances have been re-measured. Further changes to the UK corporation tax rate
were announced in the June 2010 and March 2011 Budgets which propose to reduce the rate by 1% per annum to
23% by 1 April 2014. These changes, which are expected to be enacted separately each year, had not been
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and therefore have not been recognised in these financial statements.

The current tax adjustment in respect of prior years relates to the agreement of prior year tax computations. The
deferred tax adjustments in respect of previous periods, for both 2011 and 2010, relate to adjustments to prior year
capital allowance claims.

In 2010, in addition to the current tax charge above, a £5.4 million credit for current tax was recognised in the
statement of total recognised gains and losses in relation to tax relief on pension contributions that were in excess of
the pension costs charged to the profit and loss account.
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Taxation (continued)

Factors affecting tax charge for the year

The tax assessed for the year is higher (2010: higher) than the standard rate of Corporation Tax in the UK of 28%

(2010: 28%). The differences are explained below:

2011 2010
£m fm
(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before taxation (12.4) 42.3
Profit on ordinary activities at the standard UK rate of corporation tax of 28% (3.5) 11.8
Effects of:
Items not deductible for tax purposes (including goodwill amortisation) 24.1 29.9
Items not taxable (2.9) (0.3)
Capital allowances for the year less than (2010: in excess of) depreciation 3.0 (17.9)
Short-term timing differences (18.8) (9.5)
Difference in foreign tax rates (0.6) (0.7)
Losses in joint venture companies 0.1 0.2
Losses brought forward (0.7) -
Adjustments in respect of previous periods (4.7) -
Current tax (credit)/charge for the year (4.0) 13.5
The company is not subject to Jersey income tax and withholding tax, having elected for Jersey exempt company
status and paying the appropriate annual fee.
Employee information
2011 2010
£m fm
Staff costs for the group
Wages and salaries 216.9 220.8
Social security costs 19.0 16.5
Pension costs — defined contribution (see note 22) 6.4 5.7
Pension costs — defined benefit (see note 22) 17.1 134
259.4 256.4
Staff costs for the year ended 31 March 2011 include £35.9 million (2010: £37.9 million) of costs that have been
capitalised within ‘own work capitalised’.
Average monthly number of full-time equivalent persons (including Executive Directors) employed by the group:
2011 2010
Anglian Water 3,696 3,811
Morrison Facilities Services 2,894 2,469
AWG Property 14 20
Other 294 342
6,898 6,642

The 'Other’ business segment mainly comprises head office, Celtic Anglian Water, Alpheus Environmental and a few

residual international interests.

The company
The company has no employees (2010: none).
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Profit of the parent company

The company has not presented its own profit and loss account as permitted by FRS 2 ‘Accounting for subsidiary
undertakings’. The profit for the year, dealt with in the financial statements of the company, is £216.8 million (2010:
£132.0 million).

Dividends
Interim dividends paid during the year
2011 2010
£m fm
Paid on:
8 December 2010 107.2
8 June 2010 110.0 -
15 February 2010 - 16.9
217.2 16.9

In addition, a first interim dividend of £100.0 million in respect of the year ended 31 March 2012 was approved by the
board on 26 May 2011 and was paid on 8 June 2011. This dividend has not been included as a liability at 31 March
2011.

Intangible assets

Goodwill
£m

The group
Cost
At 1 April 2010 and 31 March 2011 1,442.1
Amortisation
At 1 April 2010 (241.5)
Charge for the year (72.1)
At 31 March 2011 (313.6)
Net book amount
At 31 March 2011 1,128.5
At 31 March 2010 1,200.6

The company
The company has no intangible assets (2010: none).
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Tangible fixed assets

The group

Cost

At 1 April 2010

Additions

Transfers on commissioning
Disposals

At 31 March 2011

Grants and contributions
At 1 April 2010

Additions

At 31 March 2011

Depreciation

At 1 April 2010
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 March 2011

Net book amount
At 31 March 2011

At 31 March 2010

Infra- Vehicles, Assets
Land and structure Operational plant and under
buildings assets assets equipment  construction Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
39.6 3,087.8 2,735.0 393.5 210.9 6,466.8
0.2 - - 29 291.6 294.7
2.9 145.8 100.8 80.7 (330.2) -
- - - 0.1) - (0.1)
42.7 3,233.6 2,835.8 477.0 1723 6,761.4
- (39.6) - - (0.2) (39.8)
- (14.7) - - 0.1 (14.6)
- (54.3) - - (0.1) (54.4)
(2.8) (261.1) (376.0) (180.6) - (820.5)
(0.6) (79.0) (130.0) (61.4) - (271.0)
- - - 0.1 - 0.1
(3.49) (340.1) (506.0) (241.9) - (1,091.4)
39.3 2,839.2 2,329.8 235.1 172.2 5,615.6
36.8 2,787.1 2,359.0 212.9 210.7 5,606.5

Tangible fixed assets at 31 March 2011 include land of £24.5 million (2010: £21.8 million) which is not subject to
depreciation. The group’s interests in land and buildings are almost entirely freehold.

Assets held under finance leases

Included within the amounts shown above are the following amounts in relation to tangible fixed assets held under

finance leases:

Cost
Aggregate depreciation

Net book amount at 31 March

Depreciation charged in year

The company

The company has no tangible fixed assets (2010: none).

2011 2010
£m fm
113.6 113.6
(32.9) (24.9)
80.7 88.7
(8.0) (8.1)
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Investments

a) Joint ventures

£m
The group
Amount under equity method of accounting
At 1 April 2010 -
Profit for the year 2.6
Amounts offset against trade balances 0.4
Transfer from provisions (see note 20) (3.0)
At 31 March 2011 -

The profit for the year of joint ventures is stated after operating profits of £5.4 million (2010: £1.9 million) less interest
payable of £1.6 million (2010: £2.2 million) and a tax charge of £1.2 million (2010: £0.2 million). The transfer from
provisions of £3.0 million represents the movement in the year for those joint ventures with net liabilities (note 1(b)i).

Set out below is an analysis of the group’s principal joint ventures at 31 March 2011.

Proportion

Country of of shares

Undertaking incorporation Activity held
AWG Property

AWG Outlets (Rathdowney) Limited (i) Ireland Property development 50%

Shawlands Retail Limited Scotland Property development 50%

These undertakings principally operate in their country of incorporation, and are held by subsidiaries of Anglian
Water Group Limited.

The accounting year-end for all the above undertakings is 31 March and, unless otherwise stated, the class of shares
held is ordinary shares of £1 each.

(i) The class of shares held is one Euro each.

b) Other investments

£m
The group
Cost
At 1 April 2010 and 31 March 2011 -

Other investments include a 4.25% investment in Aguas Argentinas, a consortium which operates the water and
wastewater system in Buenos Aires, Argentina. This investment is held at its cost of £nil (2010: £nil). The net book
value at 31 March 2011 included £nil (2010: £nil) of shares.

45



14.

15.

16.

Anglian Water Group Limited

Notes to the group financial statements (continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2011

Investments (continued)

c) Subsidiary undertakings

The company
Cost
At 1 April 2010 and 31 March 2011

The principal subsidiary undertakings of the group are listed in note 30.

Stocks

Raw materials and consumables
Work in progress

There is no material difference between the balance sheet value of stocks and their replacement cost.

Debtors

Amounts falling due within one year
Trade debtors

Amounts due from customers for contract work
Amounts owed by joint ventures

— Trade balances

— Loans

Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

Loans to Shares in
subsidiary subsidiary
undertakings undertakings Total
£fm £m £m
548.0 663.2 1,211.2
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m fm £m fm
113 11.0 - -
18.2 17.3 - -
29.5 28.3 - -
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £m £m £m
186.1 193.9 - -
0.7 1.2 - -
0.2 3.5 - -
8.3 9.1 - -
12.3 11.8 - -
189.6 150.1 - -
397.2 369.6 - -

Prepayments and accrued income as at 31 March 2011 includes water and wastewater income not yet billed of

£144.2 million (2010: £121.4 million).
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Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Current portion of loans and other borrowings
Obligations under finance leases
Short-term borrowings (see note 19)

Trade creditors

Receipts in advance

Amounts owed to joint ventures
Other creditors

Corporation tax

Other taxation and social security
Accruals and deferred income
Deferred grants and contributions
Other creditors

Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010

£m £m £m fm
151.6 18.8 - -
3.0 2.6 - -
154.6 21.4 - -
121.7 1235 - -
116.9 129.5 - -
0.5 0.5 - -
8.7 12.8 - -
3.7 5.2 - -
12.3 9.9 - -
196.9 188.5 - -
7.8 7.4 - -
468.5 477.3 - -

Receipts in advance includes £101.6 million (2010: £108.6 million) relating to amounts received from customers for
water and wastewater charges in respect of the following year.

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Non-current portion of long-term loans
Obligations under finance leases
Loans and other borrowings (see note 19)

Other creditors
Deferred grants and contributions
Other creditors

Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010

£m £fm £fm £m
6,299.1 6,316.9 - -
61.1 64.2 - -
6,360.2 6,381.1 - -
29 2.5 - -
131.1 127.5 - -
134.0 130.0 - -
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19. Loans, other borrowings and financial instruments

Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010

£m £m £m £m

Loans and other borrowings

£100 million 12.375% fixed rate 2014 (d), (9) 112.1 116.5 - -
£250 million 5.837% fixed rate 2022 (d), (9) 263.6 264.7 - -
£200 million 6.875% fixed rate 2023 (d), (9) 226.1 228.2 - -
£200 million 6.625% fixed rate 2029 (d), (9) 2235 224.8 - -
£246 million 6.293% fixed rate 2030 (d), (9) 275.1 276.6 - -
£275 million 7.882% fixed rate 2012/2037 (d), (f), (9) 295.8 296.3 - -
£250 million 5.25% fixed rate 2015 (b), (d), (9) 251.6 251.9 - -
£150 million 5.5% fixed rate 2017/2040® (b), (d), (f), (9) 150.6 150.7 - -
£150 million 4.125% index-linked 2020 (c), (d), (9) 2325 226.0 - -
£75 million 3.666% index-linked 2024 (c), (d), (9) 113.6 110.2 - -
£200 million 3.07% index-linked 2032 (c), (d), (9) 318.9 309.5 - -
£60 million 3.07% index-linked 2032 (c), (d), (9) 96.2 934 - -
Finance leases (b), (d), (g) 64.1 66.8 - -
£150 million index-linked swap 2024 (e), (g) 32.7 65.4 - -
£175 million index-linked swap 2030 (e), (g) 48.6 86.7 - -
£258 million index-linked swap 2013 (e), (g) 62.3 54.5 - -
Euro 650 million 4.625% fixed rate 2013 (a), (b), (d), (9) 459.3 461.7 - -
US$195 million 7.23% private placements 2011 (a), (d), (9) 139.2 141.4 - -
£402 million 2.4% index-linked 2035 (c), (d), (g) 498.1 476.9 - -
£50 million 1.7% index-linked 2046 (c), (d), (9) 67.0 64.5 - -
£50 million 1.7% index-linked 2046 (c), (d), (9) 67.0 65.5 - -
£40 million 1.7146% indexation bond 2056 (c), (d), (g9) 56.3 54.4 - -
£50 million 1.6777% indexation bond 2056 (c), (d), (9) 69.8 67.3 - -
£60 million 1.7903% indexation bond 2049 (c), (d), (9) 83.7 80.8 - -
£100 million 1.3784% indexation bond 2057 (c), (d), (9) 115.5 111.8 - -
£50 million 1.3825% indexation bond 2056 (c), (d), (9) 57.7 55.8 - -
£100 million Class A wrapped floating rate bonds (d), (g) 99.9 99.9 - -
£100 million index-linked swap 2057 (e), (g) 14.1 11.7 - -
£75 million 1.449% indexation bond 2062 (c), (d), (9) 81.5 80.6 - -
£50 million 1.52% indexation bond 2055 (c), (d), (g) 54.3 53.6 - -
JPY 15 billion 2.925% fixed rate bond 2018/2037 (a), (b), (d), (9) 65.9 65.9 - -
£65.9 million index-linked swap 2059 (e), (9) 5.9 49 - -
£110 million Class A unwrapped floating rate bonds 2043 (d), (g) 109.9 109.9 - -
£50 million index-linked swap 2043 (e), (9) 4.3 1.8 - -
JPY 5 billion 3.22% fixed rate bond 2038 (a), (b), (d), (9) 25.0 25.0 - -
Euro 500 million 6.25% fixed rate bond 2016 (a), (d), (9) 392.7 392.4 - -
£25 million 6.875% private placements 2034 (d), (g) 24.6 24.6 - -
£100 million Class B 6.75% fixed rate bond 2024 ® (d), (g) 98.9 98.9 - -
EIB £50 million 1.626% index-linked term facility 2019 (c), (d), (9) 53.6 51.1 - -
EIB £50 million 1.3% index-linked term facility 2020 (c), (9) 52.9 50.5 - -
£130 million 2.262% indexation bond 2045 (c), (d), (9) 133.6 - - -
£100 million term facility® (b), (d), (h), (i) 95.2 4483 - -
£350 million Class B 7.0% fixed rate bond 2018 (d), (i) 342.9 - - -
Loan notes LIBOR minus 0.50% 2012 12.3 17.4 - -
£462 million 10% unsecured loan notes 2018 (d) 461.1 461.0 - -
Other loans 53 2.7 - -
Total loans and other borrowings 6,514.8 6,402.5 - -
Less amounts included in creditors falling due within one year (154.6) (21.4) - -
Loans and other borrowings due after more than one year 6,360.2 6,381.1 - -
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Loans, other borrowings and financial instruments (continued)

(a)

(b)

(9

(d)

(e)

()

(9

(h)

0)

(1)

2)

3)

[C]

(5)

The group has entered into swap agreements which eliminate the risk of currency fluctuations in relation to the
US dollar, Euro and Japanese Yen borrowings. The adjustment to the US dollar borrowings is £17.1 million (2010:
£10.1 million), the adjustment to the Euro borrowings is £(168.6) million (2010: £(177.0) million) and the
adjustment to the Japanese Yen borrowings is £(59.3) million (2010: £(49.9) million).

The group has entered into swap agreements that convert its debt into either floating rate, fixed rate or index-
linked debt in accordance with the group's hedging policy.

The value of the capital and interest elements of the index-linked loans are linked to movements in the Retail
Price Index. The total increase in the capital value of index-linked loans during the year of £82.7 million (2010:
£4.2 million) has been taken to the profit and loss account as part of interest payable.

These loans are shown net of issue costs. The issue costs are amortised at a constant rate based on the carrying
amount of debt over the life of the underlying instruments.

The group has entered into six (2010: six) index-linked interest rate swap agreements. The values of the notional
capital on these swaps are linked to movements in the Retail Price Index. The increase in the notional capital
value is payable at the final maturity date of the swaps. The increase for the current year of £27.2 million (2010:
£13.5 million) has been taken to the profit and loss account as part of interest payable.

Legal maturity of these instruments is the second of the years quoted. Coupon ‘step-up’ is in the first of the years
quoted.

A security agreement dated 30 July 2002 between Anglian Water Services Financing Plc, Anglian Water Services
Limited, Anglian Water Services Overseas Holdings Limited, Anglian Water Services Holdings Limited and
Deutsche Trustee Company Limited (as Agent and Trustee for itself and each of the Finance Parties to the Global
Secured Medium Term Note Programme) creates a fixed and floating charge over the assets of Anglian Water
Services Limited to the extent permissible under the Water Industry Act 1991. In addition there is a fixed charge
over the issued share capital of Anglian Water Services Financing Plc, Anglian Water Services Limited and Anglian
Water Services Overseas Holdings Limited. At 31 March 2011 this charge applies to £5,598.0 million (2010:
£5,473.1 million) of the debt listed above.

A debenture dated 10 October 2007 between Osprey Acquisitions Limited and the Royal Bank of Scotland Plc as
Trustee created a fixed and floating charge over all of the assets of Osprey Acquisitions Limited. As at 31 March
2010, this charge applied to £448.3 million of the debt listed above. As a consequence of the refinancing of
Osprey Acquisitions Limited in January 2011, this debenture has been replaced by the security agreement
described in note (i) below.

A security agreement dated 31 January 2011 between Anglian Water (Osprey) Financing Plc, Osprey Acquisitions
Limited and Deutsche Trustee Company Limited (as agent and trustee for itself and each of the Finance Parties to
the Guaranteed Secured Medium Term Note Programme) creates a fixed and floating charge over the assets of
Anglian Water (Osprey) Financing Plc and Osprey Acquisitions Limited. In addition there is a fixed charge over
the issued share capital of Anglian Water (Osprey) Financing Plc and AWG Parent Co Limited. At 31 March 2011
this charge applies to £438.1 million of the debt listed above.

The coupon for this instrument will increase to floating rate LIBOR plus 6.0% effective July 2012. The bond
contains an issuer call option whereby from 30 July 2012 the bond can be redeemed on any interest payment date
for 100% of the nominal amount of the bond.

The coupon for this instrument will increase to floating rate 3 month LIBOR plus 3.5% effective October 2017. The
bond contains an issuer call option whereby the bond can be redeemed on 10 October 2017 and on any interest
payment date from 10 January 2018 for 100% of the nominal amount of the bond.

The basis for this instrument will change from fixed rate to floating rate 3 month LIBOR plus 10.9% effective June
2014. The bond contains an issuer call option whereby the bond can be redeemed at par on 11 June 2014 and
each interest payment date thereafter.

During the year this facility was reduced from £450 million to £100 million.

On 26 January 2011 a Deed of Amendment extended the term of the notes to 27 May 2018 and changed the
description of the notes accordingly. The notes will now be described as unsecured loan notes due 27 May 2018.
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Loans, other borrowings and financial instruments (continued)

Maturity analysis of financial liabilities

The maturity profile of the carrying amount of the group’s financial liabilities, at 31 March was as follows:

Other
Finance financial
Loans leases liabilities Total
£m £m £m £m
At 31 March 2011
Less than one year 151.6 3.0 10.1 164.7
Between one and two years 4.1 3.4 5.8 13.3
Between two and five years 981.7 17.0 10.4 1,009.1
After five years 5,313.3 40.7 20.3 5,374.3
6,450.7 64.1 46.6 6,561.4
At 31 March 2010
Less than one year 18.8 2.6 6.3 27.7
Between one and two years 141.4 3.0 9.1 153.5
Between two and five years 1,082.3 15.6 10.7 1,108.6
After five years 5,093.2 45.6 16.8 5,155.6
6,335.7 66.8 429 6,445.4

The group analysis is net of issue costs of £34.2 million (2010: £24.4 million). The amortisation of issue costs is
included in financing expenses within the interest charge (see note 5).

Other financial liabilities comprise creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year of £2.9 million (2010: £2.5
million) and provisions of £43.7 million (2010: £40.4 million).

For the group the current and long-term borrowings can be analysed as follows:

2011 2010
Creditors: Creditors:
Creditors: amounts Creditors: amounts
amounts falling due amounts falling due
falling due after more falling due after more
within one than one within one than one
year year year year
£m £m fm fm
Amounts owed 151.6 6,328.0 17.4 6,340.0
Debt issue costs - (34.2) - (24.4)
Obligations under finance leases 3.0 61.1 2.6 64.2
Other loans - 5.3 1.4 1.3
154.6 6,360.2 21.4 6,381.1
Borrowing facilities
2011 2010
£m fm
The group has the following unused committed borrowing facilities:
Expiring within one year 383.0 580.0
Expiring between one and two years 355.0 -
Expiring between two and five years 25.0 25.0
763.0 605.0
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Loans, other borrowings and financial instruments (continued)

Financing structure

The group’s regulated water and wastewater business, Anglian Water, is funded predominately by debt in the form
of long-term bonds and other debt instruments through its financing subsidiary Anglian Water Services Financing
Plc. At 31 March 2011 Anglian Water’s net debt to capital value ratio (net debt as defined in the Common Terms
Agreement expressed as a percentage of Anglian Water’'s regulated capital value) was 78.5% (2010: 80.6%).

The group has also raised finance within Osprey Holdco Limited, Osprey Acquisitions Limited and its direct subsidiary
Anglian Water (Osprey) Financing Plc. During the year the group issued a £350 million fixed rate bond through its
new financing subsidiary Anglian Water (Osprey) Financing Plc, to replace part of the term facility within Osprey
Acquisitions Limited which was due to mature in October 2012. A new £125 million forward start facility in Anglian
Water (Osprey) Financing Plc has also been arranged with an effective date of October 2011, and this will replace the
remaining £100 million drawn term facility and £25 million undrawn revolving facility in Osprey Acquisitions Limited
when these mature in October 2011.

Control of treasury

The treasury team, which reports directly to the Managing Director, Finance & Non Regulated Business, substantially
manages the financing, including debt, interest costs and foreign exchange for the group. Treasury policy continues
to be focused on the efficient and effective management of cash and financial resources within the group. The
treasury function will actively endeavour to:

e ensure that lenders’ covenants are met;

e secure funds through a balanced approach to financial markets and maturities;

e manage interest rates to minimise financial exposures and minimise interest costs;

e invest temporary surplus cash to best advantage at minimal financial risk;

e maintain an excellent reputation with providers of finance and rating agencies;

e promote management techniques and systems;

e enhance control of financial resources; and

e monitor counter party credit exposure.

Management of financial risk

Financial risks faced by the group include funding, interest rate, contractual, currency, liquidity and credit risks. The
group regularly reviews these risks and has approved written policies covering treasury strategy and the use of
financial instruments to manage risks. Treasury matters are reported to the board each month.

A Finance, Treasury and Energy Policy Group, including the Managing Director, Finance & Non Regulated Business
and the Group Treasurer, meets monthly with the specific remit of reviewing treasury matters.

The group aims to meet its funding requirements primarily through accessing a range of financial markets such as
public bond markets, private placements, bank loans and finance leases. Surplus cash is invested in short-term bank
deposits, commercial paper, certificates of deposit, treasury bills and AAA rated money funds.

The group also enters into derivative transactions (principally currency and interest rate swaps) to manage the
interest rate and currency risks arising from the treasury policy.

To ensure continued effectiveness and relevance, the board carries out a formal annual review of the treasury
strategy.

Borrowing covenants

With the exception of asset-based funding, the group’s borrowings are raised by Osprey Holdco Limited, Osprey
Acquisitions Limited, Anglian Water (Osprey) Financing Plc and Anglian Water Services Financing Plc. The treasury
function monitors compliance against all financial obligations and it is the group’s policy to manage the balance
sheet so as to ensure operation within covenant restrictions.

51



19.

Anglian Water Group Limited
Notes to the group financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Loans, other borrowings and financial instruments (continued)

Market risk

a) Foreign currency

The group has currency exposures resulting from debt raised in currencies other than sterling and very small
purchases in foreign currencies. The group uses a range of instruments to hedge such exposures. All hedges are
undertaken for commercial reasons with the objective of minimising the impact of exchange rate fluctuations on net
assets and profits. The group has no material unhedged monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a currency
different from the local currency of the particular operation.

b) Interest rate
The group’s policy for the management of interest rate risk is to achieve a balanced mix of funding at indexed (to
RPI), fixed and floating rates of interest.

c) Commodity price risk
The group is exposed to commodity price risk in its energy procurement and utilises forward energy instruments to
minimise its exposure to price fluctuations.

Credit risk

Placements of cash on deposit expose the group to credit risk against the counterparties concerned. The group has
credit protection measures in place within agreements which provide protection in the event of counterparty rating
downgrade or default. The group only places cash deposits with banks of high credit standing (as measured by
reputable rating agencies) and also seeks to diversify exposure such that concentration with individual banks is
avoided.

Liquidity risk
The group’s objective is to maintain flexibility, diversification and continuity of funding through access to different
markets and debt instruments.

Financial instruments disclosures

Short-term debtors and creditors have been excluded from this note except for the comments on currency exposures
to the financial statements.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

2011 2010

Book Fair Book Fair

value value ® value value®

£m £m fm fm

Cash at bank and in hand (including short-term deposits) 648.4 648.4 724.8 724.8

Current asset investments 49.0 49.0 89.6 89.6

Short-term borrowings (137.2) (140.5) (21.4) (21.4)

Long-term borrowings (6,413.3) (6,468.0) (6,363.7) (6,297.9)

Interest rate swaps 203.6 234.7 207.7 263.6

Index-linked swaps (167.9) (449.1) (225.1) (425.1)

Net debt (5.817.4) (6,125.5) (5,588.1) (5,666.4)

Energy hedging instruments - 24.8 - (21.6)
Provisions excluding deferred tax and joint venture net liabilities

(see note 20) (43.7) (40.6) (40.4) (39.6)

Other financial liabilities (2.9) (2.9) (2.5) (2.5)

(5.864.0) (6,144.2) (5,631.0) (5,730.1)

" The fair value of the group’s financial instruments includes accrued interest on borrowings and swaps of £124.6
million (2010: £120.3 million). The book value excludes accrued interest which is shown separately in the balance
sheet within creditors: amounts falling due within one year.
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Loans, other borrowings and financial instruments (continued)
Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

The fair value of loans and other borrowings represents the market value of publicly traded debt instruments or, if in
respect of private debt, the cost which the group would incur if it elected to repay these borrowings before their
maturity dates, calculated by discounting future cash flows at prevailing rates including credit spreads experienced on
publicly traded debt instruments. In the fair value table above, the book values assigned to derivative instruments are
separately analysed from the book values of the underlying loans.

In accordance with the group’s accounting policy, long-term borrowings are recorded using the contracted rates
implicit in the financial instruments used to hedge the group’s exposure to fluctuations in currency and interest rates.

Interest is charged to the profit and loss account based on the contracted interest rates. To determine the fair value
of interest rate swaps for inclusion in the above table, a calculation was made of the net gain or loss which would
have arisen if these contracts had been terminated on 31 March 2011. The value at that date was determined by
market interest rates, which fluctuate over time.

The fair value of the group’s energy hedging instruments is calculated to reflect the net gain or loss which would have
arisen if these contracts had been terminated on 31 March 2011. The value at that date was determined by market
rates, which fluctuate over time.

The fair value of interest rate swaptions, as included within provisions above, represents the cost which the group
would incur if it elected to terminate these contractual arrangements before their maturity dates, calculated by
discounting future cash flows at prevailing rates.

The fair value of the group’s other financial liabilities has been estimated as not materially different from the book
value.

Unrecognised gains and losses on hedges

2011 2010

Gains Losses Net Gains Losses Net

£m £m £m fm fm fm

Unrecognised at the beginning of the year 109.0 (273.9) (164.9) 124.1 (240.0) (115.9)
Reversal of items unrecognised at beginning of year (2.1) 5.9 3.8 (5.4) 24.0 18.6
Recognised during the year (31.0) 48.9 17.9 (33.1) 30.2 (2.9)
Arising during the year 38.4 (117.4) (79.0) 234 (88.1) (64.7)
Unrecognised at 31 March 114.3 (336.5) (222.2) 109.0 (273.9) (164.9)

Gains and losses on instruments used for hedging are not recognised until the exposure that is being hedged is itself
recognised. The total net unrecognised loss of £222.2 million (2010: £164.9 million) principally represents the
opportunity cost of protecting the group interest charge against movements in interest rates at a time when interest
rates were higher than at 31 March 2011.

Of the unrecognised gains and losses at 31 March 2011, a net gain of £5.9 million (2010: gain of £26.8 million) is
expected to be included in the profit and loss account for the year ended 31 March 2012 and the balance in future
years.

All the gains and losses on the hedging instruments are expected to be matched by losses and gains on the hedged
transactions or positions. Foreign currency borrowings are swapped into sterling and translated at the contracted
rates. Consequently, the carrying value of the relevant borrowing effectively includes the gain or loss on the
hedging instrument.
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Currency and interest rate analysis of net financial assets/(liabilities)

Fixed rate  Fixed rate
weighted weighted
Index Floating Fixed Interest average average
Total linked rate rate free interest years to
£m £m £m £m £m rate maturity
At 31 March 2011
Total borrowings (all sterling) (6,514.8)  (3,128.1) (295.4) (3,091.3) - 7.2% 11.0
Cash, deposits and current asset
investments:
— Sterling 691.6 - 691.6 - -
— Euro 4.7 - 4.7 - -
—  Other currencies 1.1 - 1.1 - -
Net debt (5,817.4) (3,128.1) 402.0 (3,091.3) -
Provisions (43.7) - - - (43.7)
Other financial liabilities (2.9) - - - (2.9)
Net financial assets/(liabilities) (5,864.0) (3,128.1) 402.0 (3,091.3) (46.6)
At 31 March 2010
Total borrowings (all sterling) (6,402.5) (2,984.1) (421.1) (2,997.3) - 7.1% 12.0
Cash, deposits and current asset
investments:
— Sterling 806.9 - 806.9 - -
—  Euro 6.4 - 6.4 - -
— Other currencies 1.1 - 1.1 - -
Net debt (5,588.1) (2,984.1) 393.3 (2,997.3) -
Provisions (40.4) - - - (40.4)
Other financial liabilities (2.5) - - - (2.5)
Net financial assets/(liabilities) (5,631.0) (2,984.1) 393.3 (2,997.3) (42.9)

M

been swapped to sterling.

The underlying currencies of borrowings as set out in the table of loans and other borrowings on page 48 have

The above tables reflect the net position after hedging arrangements. Fixed rate loans are those for which the
interest rate was fixed for more than 12 months at the year-end. Floating rate cash and investments earn interest
based on LIBID (London Inter Bank Bid Rate) for the relevant currency. Floating rate borrowings incur interest based

on LIBOR.
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Provisions for liabilities

Joint
Other Business venture
Deferred Onerous onerous closures and Contract net
tax leases contracts disposals and other liabilities Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
The group
At 1 April 2010 52.1 21.1 8.1 6.7 4.5 3.0 95.5
Charge/(credit) for the year 14.2 2.6 4.6 1.7 (2.0) - 21.1
Transfer to investments - - - - - (3.0) (3.0)
Unwinding of discount - 0.6 - - - - 0.6
Write back of ACT (3.0) - - - - - (3.0)
Utilised in the year - (2.1) - (2.1) - - (4.2)
At 31 March 2011 63.3 22.2 12.7 6.3 2.5 - 107.0

The deferred tax provision and the effect of discounting is analysed in note 21.

The onerous lease provision is in respect of property leases where the unavoidable obligations under the contracts
exceed the expected economic benefits to be received from them. The provision is discounted and is expected to be
utilised over the next 15 years.

The other onerous contracts provision is made for contractual obligations on financial instruments that are not part
of a hedging relationship where a future net cash outflow is forecast on the remaining life of the instrument. The
provision is expected to be utilised by 2046.

Business closure and disposal provisions relate to exit costs, principally the disposal of the international businesses,
and the restructuring of the Property business, which are expected to crystallise over a period of two years.

The contract and other provisions comprise uncertain warranty and certification costs of £1.4 million (2010: £1.2
million), which are expected to crystallise over a period of approximately two years and £1.1 million (2010: £3.3
million) in respect of insurance claims against the group incurred but not reported, which are expected to be utilised
over a period of approximately 10 years.

The provision for joint venture liabilities represents the aggregate amount of net liabilities in joint ventures at the
balance sheet date. The amounts have been transferred from investments in order to separate the gross amounts of
investments with net liabilities from those with net assets as prescribed in the accounting policy note 1(b).
Movements in the group’s share of joint venture assets and liabilities are disclosed in note 14.

The company
The company has no provisions for liabilities (2010: none).
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Deferred tax

The group

The total tax charge in the current year includes provisions for discounted deferred tax. Consequently, changes in
the medium-term and long-term interest rates used to discount deferred tax assets and liabilities can affect the

amount of deferred tax charged or credited in the profit and loss account.

The deferred tax liability is stated net of Advance Corporation Tax (ACT) recoverable. If changes in the tax
legislation were introduced which restricted the ability of companies to use ACT, this asset may no longer be

recoverable and in this event, an additional tax charge would arise in the profit and loss account of £54.4 million.

£m
At 1 April 2010 52.1
Deferred tax charged to the profit and loss account 23.2
Less amounts included elsewhere in the balance sheet:
— Deferred tax charged in respect of movements in the deferred tax asset on pension liabilities (8.0)
— Share of joint ventures deferred tax (1.0)
Write back of ACT (3.0)
At 31 March 2011 63.3
2011 2010
£m fm
Accelerated capital allowances 870.9 932.3
Short-term timing differences (116.0) (135.2)
Surplus ACT asset (140.5) (137.5)
Undiscounted provision for deferred tax 614.4 659.6
Discount (551.1) (607.5)
Discounted provision for deferred tax 63.3 52.1
Deferred tax asset on pension liability (see note 22) (21.8) (56.3)
Total deferred tax liability/(asset) included in the balance sheet 41.5 (4.2)
The following are deferred tax assets that are not recognised in the accounts
Surplus ACT 22.8 22.8
Tax losses carried forward 2.6 1.7
254 24.5

The surplus ACT of £22.8 million was written off in subsidiary undertakings in prior years and will not be recognised
in the balance sheet until its recoverability becomes certain. The tax losses carried forward relate to losses which are
not eligible for group relief. As they exist in companies where future profits are uncertain and no deferred tax

liabilities exist, no asset has been recognised.

The company
The company has no deferred tax (2010: none).
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Pension commitments

Pension arrangements for the majority of the group’s UK employees are of the funded defined benefit type,
through the AWG Pension Scheme (‘AWGPS’), the Morrison Facilities Pension Scheme (‘MFPS’) and various other
smaller arrangements. The group also has pension obligations to former employees through the Morrison Pension
& Life Assurance Plan ("MPLAP’). These are all final salary. In addition, pensions in payment to a number of former
employees are unfunded. The administration and investment of the pension funds are maintained separately from
the finances of the group. The group’s actuary is Aon Hewitt.

The majority of the defined benefit arrangements are closed to new members, who are eligible instead for entry to
the group’s defined contribution schemes. For closed schemes, under the projected unit method, the current service
cost will increase as the members of the scheme approach retirement.

The valuation used for the FRS 17 disclosures has been based on the most recent formal or informal actuarial
valuations, updated by independent actuaries to take account of the requirements of FRS 17 in order to assess the
liabilities of the schemes at 31 March 2011. For all three of the group’s main schemes the latest valuations were at
31 March 2008.

The group contributed 21.2% (2010: 16.0%) of pensionable pay plus £20.8 million (2010: £20.8 million) per annum
to AWGPS during the year. Contributions to MPLAP were £7.1 million (2010: £7.1 million) during the year. The
group contributed 20.3% of pensionable salaries from 1 April 2010 to 30 June 2010 plus £117,000 per month to
MFPS. From 1 July 2010 contributions to MFPS were 21.4% (2010: 20.3%) of pensionable salaries plus £132,000
(2010: £117,000) per month. In the year to 31 March 2012, contributions are expected to be £49.9 million for
employers’ contributions and £5.2 million for members’ contributions.

A number of defined contribution schemes operate predominantly in the UK, and contributions to these schemes
amounted to £6.4 million (2010: £5.7 million).

a) Principal actuarial assumptions
The liabilities of the schemes have been valued using the projected unit method and using the following
assumptions:

2011 2010
% pa % pa
Discount rate 5.5 5.6
Inflation rate
- RPI 34 3.5
- CPI 2.7 n/a
Increase to deferred benefits during deferment
— RPI 34 3.5
- CPI 2.7 n/a
Increases to inflation related pensions in payment
- RPI 3.4" 3.5
- CPI 2.7 n/a
General salary increases 4.4 4.5
2011 2010
years years
Longevity at age 65 for current pensioners
- Men 23.5 23.3
-  Women 25.9 25.8
Longevity at age 65 for future pensioners ©
- Men 25.5 25.4
-  Women 27.7 27.7

“ For MFPS, the assumption for RPI pension increases capped at 5% is 3.3% (2010: 3.4%), for CPI pension increases
capped at 5% the assumption is 2.7%. Additionally, heavier mortality is assumed for this scheme, with life
expectancy at age 65 for current pensioners being 20.3 years (2010: 20.2 years) for males and 22.5 years (2010:
22.8 years) for females. For members reaching 65 in 2031, the life expectancy at age 65 is 21.7 years (2010: 21.6
years) for males and 24.1 years (2010: 24.3 years) for females.

@ The life expectancy shown for future pensioners is for those reaching 65 in 2031.

57



22,

Anglian Water Group Limited

Notes to the group financial statements (continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2011

Pension commitments (continued)

b) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

2011

Analysis of amount charged to staff costs within operating
profit (see note 9)

Current service cost

Past service cost

Total operating charge

Analysis of amount (charged)/credited to other finance
income (see note 6)

Expected return on pension scheme assets

Interest on pension scheme liabilities

Net return

Total charge to profit on ordinary activities before taxation

2010

Analysis of amount charged to staff costs within operating profit
Current service cost

Past service cost

Total operating charge

Analysis of amount (charged)/credited to other finance income
Expected return on pension scheme assets

Interest on pension scheme liabilities

Net return

Total charge to profit on ordinary activities before taxation

The actual return on scheme assets was a gain of £97.9 million (2010: gain of £206.8 million).

c) Amounts recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses

2011

Actual return on pension scheme assets less expected return
Experience gains and losses arising on the scheme liabilities
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the scheme
liabilities

Changes in amounts not recognised in the balance sheet

Total gain recognised

2010

Actual return on pension scheme assets less expected return
Experience gains and losses arising on the scheme liabilities
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the scheme
liabilities

Changes in amounts not recognised in the balance sheet

Total loss recognised

Total other
funded Unfunded

AWGPS schemes pensions Total
£m £m £m £m
(11.1) (5.2) - (16.3)
(0.8) - - (0.8)
(11.9) (5.2) - (17.1)
49.1 17.8 - 66.9
(55.5) (17.3) .7) (75.5)
(6.4) 0.5 (2.7) (8.6)
(18.3) (4.7) (2.7) (25.7)
(7.8) (4.5) - (12.3)
(1.1) - - (1.1)
(8.9) (4.5) - (13.4)

35.2 13.3 - 48.5
(47.2) (14.6) (2.6) (64.4)
(12.0) (1.3) (2.6) (15.9)
(20.9) (5.8) (2.6) (29.3)

Total other
funded Unfunded

AWGPS schemes pensions Total
£m £m £m £m
23.0 8.0 - 31.0
10.6 5.0 - 15.6
50.6 16.9 4.7 72.2
- (28.5) - (28.5)
84.2 14 4.7 90.3

101.7 56.6 - 158.3
(20.1) (1.2) - (21.3)
(186.7) (60.4) (6.2) (253.3)
- (1.6) - (1.6)
(105.1) (6.6) (6.2) (117.9)

Cumulative actuarial losses recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses are £131.0 million (2010:

£221.3 million).
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d) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

Expected Total other
rate of funded Unfunded
return AWGPS schemes pensions Total
%pa £m £m £m £m
2011
Equities 7.3 314.1 154.1 - 468.2
Corporate bonds 5.5 228.0 54.9 - 282.9
Government bonds 4.3 323.4 76.4 - 399.8
Property 6.3 43.8 7.2 - 51.0
Alternatives 6.3 15.1 41.5 - 56.6
Other 0.5 5.7 7.6 - 13.3
Total assets 930.1 341.7 - 1,271.8
Fair value of scheme liabilities (974.7) (310.0) (44.3) (1,329.0)
Amounts not recognised - (26.5) - (26.5)
(Deficit)/surplus in the scheme (44.6) 5.2 (44.3) (83.7)
Related deferred tax asset 11.6 (1.3) 11.5 21.8
Net pension liability (33.0) 3.9 (32.8) (61.9)
Comprising:
Pension schemes with net assets - 5.8 - 5.8
Pension schemes with net liabilities (33.0) (1.9) (32.8) (67.7)
(33.0) 3.9 (32.8) (61.9)
2010
Equities 7.5 305.3 204.4 - 509.7
Corporate bonds 5.6 119.9 20.8 - 140.7
Government bonds 4.5 313.9 40.3 - 354.2
Property 6.5 411 6.2 - 47.3
Alternatives 6.5 33.4 20.5 - 53.9
Other 0.5 37.8 14.9 - 52.7
Total assets 851.4 307.1 - 1,158.5
Fair value of scheme liabilities (997.6) (314.9) (48.9) (1,361.4)
Amounts not recognised - 2.0 - 2.0
Deficit in the scheme (146.2) (5.8) (48.9) (200.9)
Related deferred tax asset 40.9 1.7 13.7 56.3
Net pension liability (105.3) 4.1) (35.2) (144.6)
Comprising:
Pension schemes with net assets - 1.4 - 1.4
Pension schemes with net liabilities (105.3) (5.5) (35.2) (146.0)
(105.3) (4.1) (35.2) (144.6)

(1

contributions, and deficits in excess of agreed liability caps.

The overall expected return on assets is calculated as the weighted average of the expected returns on each

Amounts not recognised relate to surpluses that cannot be recovered through refunds or a reduction in future

individual asset class net of investment expenses. The expected return on equities is determined as gilt yields plus a
3% equity risk premium. The return on bonds is determined by the market yield on long-term bonds with an
adjustment for defaults. The expected return on property and alternative investments is determined as gilt yields

plus a 2% risk premium. The expected return on other assets is set by reference to base rates.

The scheme assets do not include any of the group’s own financial instruments, nor any property occupied by, nor

other assets used by, the group.
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e) Reconciliation of fair value of scheme assets

Total other
funded Unfunded
AWGPS schemes pensions Total
£m £m £m £m
2011
At 1 April 2010 851.4 307.1 - 1,158.5
Expected return on scheme assets 49.1 17.8 - 66.9
Employers’ contributions 35.7 14.3 2.6 52.6
Members' contributions 3.7 1.4 - 5.1
Benefits paid (32.8) (6.9) (2.6) (42.3)
Actuarial gain 23.0 8.0 - 31.0
At 31 March 2011 930.1 341.7 - 1,271.8
2010
At 1 April 2009 707.4 221.5 - 928.9
Expected return on scheme assets 35.2 13.3 - 48.5
Employers’ contributions 31.7 14.1 2.6 48.4
Members' contributions 3.9 1.6 - 5.5
Benefits paid (28.5) (7.8) (2.6) (38.9)
Bulk transfer - 7.8 - 7.8
Actuarial gain 101.7 56.6 - 158.3
At 31 March 2010 851.4 307.1 - 1,158.5
f) Reconciliation of scheme liabilities
Total other
funded Unfunded
AWGPS schemes pensions Total
£m £m £m £m

2011
At 1 April 2010 (997.6) (314.9) (48.9) (1,361.4)
Current service cost (11.1) (5.2) - (16.3)
Past service cost (0.8) - - (0.8)
Interest cost (55.5) (17.3) (2.7) (75.5)
Members’ contributions (3.7) (1.4) - (5.1)
Benefits paid 32.8 6.9 2.6 42.3
Actuarial gain 61.2 21.9 4.7 87.8
At 31 March 2011 (974.7) (310.0) (44.3) (1,329.0)
2010
At 1 April 2009 (759.3) (232.6) (42.7) (1,034.6)
Current service cost (7.8) (4.5) - (12.3)
Past service cost (1.1) - - (1.1)
Interest cost (47.2) (14.6) (2.6) (64.4)
Members' contributions (3.9 (1.6) - (5.5)
Benefits paid 28.5 7.8 2.6 38.9
Bulk transfer - (7.8) - (7.8)
Actuarial loss (206.8) (61.6) (6.2) (274.6)
At 31 March 2010 (997.6) (314.9) (48.9) (1,361.4)

60



22,

Anglian Water Group Limited

Notes to the group financial statements (continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2011

Pension commitments (continued)

g) History of schemes

Deficit at 31 March

Fair value of scheme assets
Present value of scheme liabilities
Amounts not recognised

Deficit in the scheme

Related deferred tax asset

Net pension liability

History of experience gains and losses

Actual return on pension scheme assets less expected
return

Experience gains and losses arising on scheme liabilities
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of
the scheme liabilities

Changes in amounts not recognised in the balance sheet
Amount recognised in the statement of total recognised
gains and losses

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m £m
1,271.8 1,158.5 928.9 1,034.2 999.3
(1,329.0) (1,361.4) (1,034.6) (1,115.9) (1,022.3)
(26.5) 2.0 3.6 (0.4) (3.4)
(83.7) (200.9) (102.1) (82.1) (26.4)
21.8 56.3 28.6 23.0 8.0
(61.9) (144.6) (73.5) (59.1) (18.4)
31.0 158.3 (182.2) (60.6) (10.6)
15.6 (21.3) 23.1 (43.9) (3.3)
72.2 (253.3) 112.1 9.6 47.0
(28.5) (1.6) 4.0 2.5 (1.1)
90.3 (117.9) (43.0) (92.4) 32.0
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Anglian Water Group Limited
Notes to the group financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Share capital
Group and Company

2011 2010
£m fm

Allotted, issued and fully paid

14,843,754 A ordinary no par value shares - -
656,246 B ordinary no par value shares - -
109,631,487,794 redeemable preference no par value shares - -

The B ordinary shares rank pari passu in all respects with the A ordinary shares except that the holders of B ordinary
shares shall not have a right to speak or vote at any general meetings or by written resolution in respect of their
holdings of B ordinary shares in relation to the appointment or removal of Directors.

The holders of preference shares shall be entitled to receive any dividends resolved to be distributed pro rata to their
holdings of preference shares. On a distribution of assets of the company among its members on a winding up or
other return of capital (other than a redemption or purchase by the company of its own shares), the holders of the
preference shares shall be entitled to receive in priority to any holder of any other class of shares, an amount equal
to the aggregate of the capital paid up on their preference shares and participate in any surplus arising. The
preference shares are redeemable at the option of the company at a price to be determined by the Board of
Directors. The preference shares do not carry any voting rights.

Movement in shareholders’ funds

The group
Share
Share premium Profit and
capital account loss reserve Total
£m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2010 - 1,096.2 (331.1) 765.1
Loss for the financial year - - (34.6) (34.6)
Actuarial gain recognised on the pension schemes - - 90.3 90.3
Deferred tax relating to the actuarial gain on the pension schemes - - (25.3) (25.3)
Impact of change in tax rate on deferred tax on pension schemes - - (1.2) (1.2)
Total recognised gains and losses relating to the year - - 29.2 29.2
Dividends paid - - (217.2) (217.2)
At 31 March 2011 - 1,096.2 (519.1) 5771
The company
Share
Share premium Profit and
capital account loss reserve Total
£m £m £m £m

At 1 April 2010 - 1,096.2 115.6 1,211.8
Profit for the financial year - - 216.8 216.8
Dividends paid - - (217.2) (217.2)
At 31 March 2011 - 1,096.2 115.2 1,211.4
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Anglian Water Group Limited
Notes to the group financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Capital commitments

The group

The group has a substantial long-term investment programme in Anglian Water, which includes expenditure to meet
regulatory requirements, shortfalls in performance and condition, and to provide for new demand and growth. The
commitments shown below reflect the value outstanding of orders placed at 31 March 2011.

2011 2010
£m fm
Contracted for but not provided in the financial statements 42.4 111.8

There were no capital commitments relating to the group’s share of joint ventures.

The company
The company has no such commitments (2010: none).

Commitment under operating leases
At 31 March 2011 the group had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases expiring:

2011 2010

Land and Plant and Land and Plant and

buildings machinery buildings machinery

£m £m £m fm

Within one year 0.5 0.8 0.5 0.6

Within two and five years 1.4 1.7 2.9 2.3
After five years 9.9 - 9.9

11.8 2.5 133 2.9

The company
The company has no such commitments (2010: none).

Contingencies

The group has entered into a number of performance bonding and guarantee arrangements in the normal course of
business. Provision is made for any amounts that the Directors consider may become payable under such
arrangements. The group has also guaranteed financial obligations of joint ventures totalling £4.4 million (2010:
£10.0 million).

The group has entered into a variety of restructuring and re-financing initiatives over time to optimise the efficiency
of its balance sheet and organisation in order to create value for customers and shareholders. Extensive professional
advice has been taken which supports the view that all group restructurings have been correctly treated for
accounting and tax purposes and therefore, since any risk here is very low, no provisions for tax liabilities are
considered to be necessary. At 31 March 2011, the group had £140.5 million (2010: £137.5 million), before
discounting, of recoverable ACT recorded in the balance sheet. This ACT is expected to be recovered in full over time
and therefore no provision is considered appropriate in respect of this asset.

63



28.

29.

Anglian Water Group Limited

Notes to the group financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

Anglian Water Group Limited is owned and controlled by a consortium of investors consisting of the Canada Pension
Plan Investment Board, Colonial First State Global Asset Management, Industry Funds Management (IFM), and 3i.

Related party transactions

a) Transactions with shareholders

The consortium of investors owning Anglian Water Group Limited are considered to be related parties of the
company as they each have the ability to influence the financial and operating policies of both the company and the
group.

During the period to 31 March 2007 the group issued £462.0 million of 10% unsecured loan notes dated 2017 to the
four members of the consortium of investors owning Anglian Water Group Limited. On 26 January 2011 a Deed of
Amendment extended the term of the notes to 27 May 2018 and changed the description of the notes accordingly.
The notes will now be described as unsecured loan notes due 27 May 2018. At 31 March 2011 the amount
outstanding was £462.0 million (2010: £462.0 million). Interest of £11.0 million (2010: £11.0 million) has been
accrued but not paid on these loan notes.

During the year to 31 March 2011 there were no other transactions, other than £217.2 million of dividends, (2010:
none other than £16.9 million of dividends) with the shareholders.

b) Transactions with Key Management

A scheme is in place to encourage investment in the group by Key Management on an equivalent basis as the
consortium of shareholders. During the year a further £3.5 million (2010: £nil) was invested by Key Management
and the group repaid £1.4 million (2010: £2.4 million) as part of this scheme, and a return of £0.6 million (2010: £0.5
million) was earned. At 31 March 2011 £4.1 million (2010: £1.4 million) was loaned to the group by Key
Management under this scheme. At the balance sheet date Key Management also held various bonds issued by the
group totalling £0.2 million (2010: £0.1 million), and held £0.1 million (2010: £0.1 million) of Loan notes at LIBOR
minus 0.5% dated 2012.

As part of the company's usual relocation policy to assist key employees to relocate their main family home into the
region, on 28 April 2010 Anglian Water Services Limited purchased the family home of one of its directors, for
£407,500. The price paid was the market value of the property at the time, as assessed by independent surveyors. At
31 March 2011 the house was being marketed for sale by the company, and was included in the consolidated
financial statements within current assets at its purchase price.
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Anglian Water Group Limited
Notes to the group financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Related party transactions (continued)

c) Other related party transactions
The group’s other related party transactions were all with joint ventures of the group and are summarised below:

2011 2010

£m fm

Sale of goods/services 0.1 0.4
Purchase of goods/services - (0.2)

Sales to, and purchases from, joint ventures were carried out on commercial terms and conditions and at market
prices.

Year-end balances arising from sales of goods/services

2011 2010
Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts
owed from owed to owed from owed to
related related related related
parties parties parties parties
£m £m fm fm
Morrison Veolia Limited - - 2.7 -
Joint ventures with AWG Property 0.2 (0.5) 0.8 (0.5)
0.2 (0.5) 3.5 (0.5)
Loans to related parties
Decrease
during
At 1 April the year At 31 March
£m £m £m
Year ended 31 March 2011
Joint ventures with AWG Property 10.6 (2.3) 8.3
Amounts provided (1.5) 1.5 -
9.1 (0.8) 8.3
Year ended 31 March 2010
Joint ventures with AWG Property 13.5 (2.9) 10.6
Amounts provided - (1.5) (1.5)
13.5 (4.4) 9.1

Loans to related parties were made to fund the ongoing development activities of joint venture companies.
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Anglian Water Group Limited
Notes to the group financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Principal group companies
The principal subsidiary undertakings at 31 March 2011 are shown below. A full list of the group’s subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates will be delivered to the registrar with the next annual return.

Country of
incorporation Activities
Group and Other
Osprey Holdco Limited England Holding and financing company
Osprey Acquisitions Limited England Holding and financing company
Alpheus Environmental Limited England Wastewater treatment
Anglian Water (Osprey) Financing Plc England Financing company
AWG Parent Co Limited England Holding company
AWG Group Limited England Holding company
AWG Central Services Limited England Provision of administration services to group companies
AWG Holdings Limited Jersey Holding company
AWG UK Holdings Limited England Holding company
Celtic Anglian Water Limited Ireland Water and wastewater treatment
Rutland Insurance Limited Guernsey Provision of insurance to group companies
Anglian Water
Anglian Water Services Limited © England Water and wastewater undertaker, regulated principally by
the Water Industry Act 1991
Anglian Water Services Financing Plc England Financing company
Anglian Water Services Holdings Limited England Holding company
Anglian Water Services Overseas Holdings
Limited Cayman Islands  Holding company
Morrison Facilities Services
Morrison Facilities Services Limited Scotland Property maintenance and repair work
Maintenance and Property Care Limited Scotland Property maintenance and repair work
Morrison Scotland LLP Scotland Property maintenance and repair work
Manchester Working Limited England Property maintenance and repair work
Property Services
AWG Property Limited Scotland Development of land and buildings
AWG Residential Limited Scotland Development of residential estates

“" This company is owned directly by Anglian Water Group Limited.

“ Including Anglian Water Services trading as Hartlepool Water.

The group also owns a number of smaller and non-trading companies. All of the subsidiaries listed above are 100%
owned by the group or the company with the exception of Maintenance and Property Care Limited and Morrison
Scotland LLP which are 66.7% owned, Manchester Working Limited which is 80% owned and Celtic Anglian Water
Limited which is 50% owned. Celtic Anglian Water Limited has been consolidated as a subsidiary undertaking as in
the opinion of the Directors the group exercises control over the company.

The voting rights in respect of each subsidiary are in the same proportion as the shares held. Those companies
shown as incorporated in England are registered in England and Wales. All companies operate principally in their
country of incorporation, except for Morrison Facilities Services Limited which principally operates in England.

All subsidiaries have a year-end of 31 March.

All subsidiary undertakings disclosed above are included within the consolidated financial statements.
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Independent auditors’ report to the member of Anglian Water Group
Limited

We have audited the group and parent company financial statements (the ‘financial statements’) of Anglian
Water Group Limited for the year ended 31 March 2011 which comprise the Group Profit and Loss Account, the
Group Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses, the Group Statement of Movement in Shareholders’
Funds, the Group and Company Balance Sheets, the Group Cash Flow Statement and the related notes. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in
accordance with Article 113A of the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving
this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s and
parent company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors; and the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

* give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and the parent company’s affairs as at 31 March 2011 and
of the group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended;

* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards; and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991.

Opinion on other matter
In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991 requires us

to report to you if, in our opinion:

* proper accounting records have not been kept by the parent company or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

* the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Stephen ﬁ\gk’

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants
Birmingham, England

?/Q M—h"
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